
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/02/2019 • Last updated: 08/24/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name Yalow Charter School 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 9 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 06/2014 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2015 

INSTRUCTION 

1 / 12 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School will eliminate the learning achievement gap for urban children  

including special needs students and English language learners  by using engaging and demanding 

curriculum to graduate all students at or above grade level in literacy and math. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 

Variable 2 

Variable 3 

Qualified Staff Focused on At Risk Students. There are a 
significant number of District 9 K 8 students who are 
economically disadvantaged, in need of English language
support, and have disabilities and/or require special
Education. To support students with these risk factors, Yalow
Charter School will provide licensed master social workers in
each of the ten Kindergarten through second grade classes
and a 12:1:1 special education class. 

Robust Response to Intervention. Yalow Charter School will
rigorously address the needs of special education and ELL
students by hiring a dedicated team of 5 11 special
education and ELL teachers , who will be responsible for
managing student caseloads meeting with individual
students and teachers to improve academic outcomes. In
this way the school will be able to identify at risk children
and provide appropriate intervention for each of Yalow’s
educational programs. Yalow employs a director of
assessment as the point person coordinating the prompt
implementation of IEPs and scaffolds some general
education students with a Reading Specialist and teaching
fellows. 

Quality Curriculum and Pedagogy. Yalow Charter School is
committed to taking full advantage of the New York Common
Core State Standards by utilizing recently developed cutting
edge curriculum. Yalow will adopt the Core Knowledge
Foundation's Core Knowledge Language Arts (CKLA)
program, recommended by the State Education Department
for K 5, and the Singapore math program for K 5. CKLA
teaches students decoding skills (phonics) and builds their
language comprehension with vocabulary and concepts 
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using frequent read alouds. The school pursues inquiry
based science where students learn to investigate a question
on their own, with teacher guidance. Finally, Yalow
implements regular arts and music instruction as well as
chess and fencing. 

Variable 4 High Quality Collaborators. To add instructional expertise,
Yalow Charter School has entered into relationships with
high quality local institutions, including the Bronx Arts
Ensemble, which provides arts, music, and dance programs
to over 50 schools in the Bronx; the Kasparov Chess
Foundation, an international promoter of chess in schools;
and a U.S. Olympic fencing team coach to provide fencing
instruction. 

Variable 5 Meticulous Data Driven School. Continuous student 
assessment is critical to inform differentiated student 
instruction and evaluate teaching methods, teachers, and
ultimately the performance of the school. Yalow will utilize
the state of the art STEP Literacy assessment system for
literacy and the NWEA MAP system for math assessments of
its students. 

Variable 6 Comprehensive Professional Development. To bring out the
best in teachers, Yalow Charter School plans for 20 25 days
of professional development (including a Summer Teacher
Workshop); bi weekly planning meetings for teaching staff;
individual teacher support to implement core lesson plans;
and frequent curriculum development to fully utilize the
American Museum of Natural History as an extension of our
classrooms. 

Variable 7 Team Teaching. Yalow Charter School will utilize a team
teaching model that links an experienced teacher with a
teacher with a social worker background in K 2 or a certified
teaching fellow in the later grades. This two person team, in
conjunction with the school’s dedicated special education
and ELL teachers supporting classroom teachers, will provide
greater capacity for differentiated individual instruction and
help for modifying small classroom behavior problems before
they become bigger. 

Variable 8 Family Involvement. At Yalow Charter School, family
involvement is critical to the educational experience. To
initiate the family school relationship, Yalow teachers will
visit every new student’s home at the start of the school
year. To achieve our extremely high expectations, it is crucial
that families motivate their students to do reading
homework, come to school alert and prepared, and follow
the values we promote at Yalow. Finally, we expect to engage
families in the many special arts, music, chess, fencing, and
science events during the school year. 

Variable 9 Strong School Culture. Yalow Charter School believes that 
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building student character (high ideals, high standards, and
high expectations) is a key component of school culture as
well as having good teachers. To this end, Yalow will have a
school uniform policy for its students and insist on courteous
behavior, hard work, and no excuses from both faculty and
students. In our efforts to develop the whole child and
building student character we will promote the disciplined
activities of arts and chess/fencing from the start, letting our
students know that equality of the mind is the only tenet we
follow everyone can compete, everyone can be successful
at something. 

Variable 10 Low Student/Teacher Ratio. The Yalow Charter School model
maintains student/teacher ratios below 11:1 for it first five
years of operation by limiting administrative staff and hiring
11 special education, ELL and reading instructors to increase
student achievement in earlier grades. 

Need additional space for Yes 

variables 
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g1. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 11 

Variable 12 

Variable 13 

Variable 14 

Variable 15 

Variable 16 

Variable 17 

Variable 18 

Variable 19 

Variable 20 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

Extended School Day. Yalow Charter School will operate a 9
hour school day, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., using staggered teaching
schedules. Arts, music, chess, and fencing will take place in
the school day. Most of our students will be financially
disadvantaged, special education students, or English
language learners who may also be entering kindergarten
1.5 years behind their peers in reading and math. The
extended day will give our students the extra time to catch
up academically. Homework is solely reading in grades K 2. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

www.yalowcharter.org 

456 

444 
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k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address 

116 E 169th St, Site 1 New York, 10452 

Phone Number 

347 735 5480 

District/CSD 

NYC CSD 9 

Grades to be 
Served at Site 
for coming year
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) 

2 5 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

2 5 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Alec Diacou 

Monique Evans 

Monique Evans 

Shannon Burton 

Donald Mabrey 

Alec Diacou 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93647409/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93647409/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

School Site 2 
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m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 2 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be Receives Rental 
Served at Site Assistance for 
for coming year Which Grades (If
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) yes, enter the

3490 Third Ave., Site 2 347 735 5480 NYC CSD 9 K 1 Bronx, NY 10456 

m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

School 
Leader 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

Name 

Alec Diacou 

Monique Evans 

Monique Evans 

Alec Diacou 

Donald Mabrey 

Alec Diacou 

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone 

appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

K 1 

Email Address 
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1 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93647409/s65IeHxlLr/ 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/93647409/bZoeZBX06f/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Change in Bylaws 

Change in Bylaws 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

A change was made
to the school's 
bylaws to reflect new
reporting of school
leadership to the
Board. 

A change was made
to the school's 
bylaws to allow the
school to expand or
reduce the number of 
Trustees constituting
the entire Board 
without the necessity
of a Bylaw
amendment so long
as the number of 
trustees remains 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

11/20/2018 

11/20/2018 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

9 / 12 
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4 

Change in Bylaws 

Change in personnel
policy 

between seven and 
fifteen and the Board 
notifies the 
authorizer of any
change and seeks
authorizer approval
for newly appointed 
trustees. 

A change was made
to the school's 
bylaws to permit a
flexible number of 
Trustees (between 7
and 15). 

The School’s Paid 
Time Off (PTO) policy
was modified to 
reflect that: (a) up to
ten PTO days may be
rolled over to the 
fiscal year following
the year in which
those days were
accrued; (b) 12
month employees
shall accrue 12 days
of PTO annually; and
(c) employees may
be paid for up to ten
days of unused PTO
time upon the
termination of their 
employment, such
payment to be made
at the employee’s
regular daily rate;
provided, that
employees who fail
to give proper notice
of a voluntary
resignation shall not
be paid for unused
PTO. “Proper notice”
means: two weeks’ 
prior written notice
for nonexempt
employees, four
weeks’ prior written
notice for exempt
employees, or any
longer notice period
stated in the 

06/01/2019 06/25/2019 preapproval 

07/16/2019 
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5 

employee’s offer
letter or employment 
contract. 

More revisions to add? No 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Alec Diacou 

Position Executive Director 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/01 

Thank you. 
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Page 1 of 4 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:      

This  certifies that the premises  described  herein conforms substantially  to the approved plans and specifications and to the 
requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified. No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued. This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the 
building at all reasonable times. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

Borough: Bronx 

3480 3RD AVE Address: 

Building Identification Number (BIN): 2118328 

Block Number: 02609 

Lot Number(s): 7501 

Building Type: Altered 

Certificate Type: Final 

Effective Date: 06/06/2013 

This building is subject to this Building Code:  1968 Code 

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb. 

Construction classification: 1-C (1968 Code designation) 

Building Occupancy Group classification: R-2 (2008 Code) 

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification: HAEA 

No. of stories: 12 Height in feet: 124 No. of dwelling units: 113 

Fire Protection Equipment: 
None associated with this filing. 

Type and number of open spaces: 
None associated with this filing. 

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations: 
None 

Borough Comments: None 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 



              
       

 

          
 

 

 

          
 

 

                  
        

 
 

 

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

Page 2 of 4 

Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:      

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

CEL OG S-2 2B ATTENDED PARKING FOR 28 SPACES IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH RESIDENTIAL 

CEL OG U 2B WATER SERVICE & FIRE PUMP ROOM. 
ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM, ELECTRICAL 
ROOM, GAS METER ROOM, STORAGE ROOMS 

CEL OG S-2 6F ATTENDED PARKING FOR 22 SPACES IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH COMMERCIAL 

001 001 120 U 2B COMPACTOR ROOM 

001 001 2 120 M 6F, 2B, 3B ATTENDANT BOOTH 
R-2 
I-4 

001 001 120 I-4 3B DAYCARE NURSERY LOBBY 

001 001 120 R-2 2B RESIDENTIAL LOBBY 

001 001 441 120 E 3A COMMUNITY FACILITY SCHOOL 

001 001 120 S-2 6F, 2B REQUIRED LOADING BERTH 

002 002 117 100 I-4 3A DAYCARE NURSERY FOR INFANTS (6 
MONTHS TO 6 YEARS OLD) 

002 002 126 100 E 3A DAYCARE SCHOOL FOR INFANTS (6 MONTHS 
TO 6 YEARS OLD) 

002 002 74 40 A-3 3B EXTERIOR RECREATION SPACE 
(ACCESSORY TO DAYCARE NURSERY) 

002 002 74 40 A-3 2B REQUIRED EXTERIOR RECREATION SPACE 
(ACCESSORY TO RESIDENTIAL) 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:      

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

002 002 100 U 3B TRASH ROOM IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
DAYCARE NURSERY SCHOOL 

003 003 10 40 R-2 2B REQUIRED LAUNDRY ROOM (ACCESSORY TO 
RESIDENTIAL) 

003 003 40 40 R-2 2B REQUIRED INDOOR RECREATION ROOM FOR 
RESIDENTS 

003 003 40 R-2 10 2A 10 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

004 004 40 R-2 12 2A 12 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

005 005 40 R-2 12 2A 12 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

006 006 40 R-2 12 2A 12 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

007 007 40 R-2 12 2A 12 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

008 008 40 R-2 11 2A 11 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

009 009 40 R-2 11 2A 11 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

010 010 40 R-2 11 2A 11 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

011 011 40 R-2 11 2A 11 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

012 012 40 R-2 11 2A 11 CLASS 'A' APARTMENTS 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 
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Certificate of Occupancy 
CO Number:      

Permissible Use and Occupancy 
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations. 

Floor 
From To 

Maximum 
persons 
permitted 

Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft. 

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group 

Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units 

Zoning 
use group Description of use 

RO 40 R-2 2B ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM, BOILER ROOM 
F 

THIS CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY SHALL ALSO BE CONSIDERED A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE UNDER SECTION #301 OF THE 
MULTIPLE DWELLING LAW. THIS DEVELOPMENT IS PURSUANT TO THE QUALITY HOUSING PROGRAM ZR 28-01. THIS PROPERTY 
CONSISTS OF ONE (1) ZONING LOT (LOT 4) WITH TWO TAX LOTS (TAX LOTS 115 & 120). PARKING EASEMENT ARE FILED WITH CITY 
REGISTER CRFN#'S 2010000297966 2010000297967 NOTE: VACANT SPACE AT FIRST FLOOR SHALL NOT BE OCCUPIED UNLESS AN 
AMENDED CO IS OBTAINED. EXHIBIT I & III HAVE BEEN FILED AND RECORDED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE UNDER CRFN 
#2010000297955 AND CRFN #2010000297954 RESPECTIVELY. THERE SHALL BE TWO (2) PERMANENT ACCESSORY LOADING 
DOCKS AT 535 EAST 167TH STREET FILED UNDER APPLICATION #220036538 WITH A LOADING BERTH GROSS AREA OF 3,265 S.F. 
AND ONE (1) LOADING DOCK AT 3480 3RD AVE WITH A LOADING BERTH GROSS AREA OF 1,280 S.F. NOTE: ENTRANCE TO 
COMBINED PARKING GARAGE FOR 3462 & 3480 THIRD AVENUE IS LOCATED AT 3480 WHEREAS 3462 THIRD AVENUE HAS A TOTAL 
OF 76 SPACES & 3480 THIRD AVENUE HAS A TOTAL OF 50 SPACES; COMBINED TOTAL OF 126 SPACES. 

END OF SECTION 

Borough Commissioner Commissioner 

END OF DOCUMENT 220283556/000  6/6/2013 11:50:16 AM 







	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	

Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Created: 07/15/2019 • Last updated: 07/18/2019 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

instid=800000083429&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke 

d=1&OverallStatus=1&section_1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMc 

omposite=1&EMgrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMp 

rogress=1&EMchronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1& 

38ELA=1&38MATH=1&nyseslat=1&nysaa=1&feddata=1 
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Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 07/22/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student Measure Used to 
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress

Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

To meet the goal for
ELA in the 2019 20 
school year, the
following efforts will
be taken: 

• Guided reading will
remain hard 
scheduled as an 
integral part of the
reading program with
the addition of mini 
schedule block to 
build targeted skills.
For example, the first
15 minutes of the 45
minute Skills block is 
devoted to phonics
and word work with 
support from the RTI
reading Intervention
teacher as needed. 

• The school will 
continue to 
strengthen teacher
capacity in reading 

1 / 9 



	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	
	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

1 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
2 

Academ 
ic Goal 

75% of students who 
have attended the 
school for at least 
one year will score at
Levels 3 or 4 on the 
New York State ELA 
exam. 

Students will 
outperform CSD 9
students by 10%, as
measured by the
percentage at Levels
3 and 4 in the same 
grades on the state
ELA exam. 

Each year, each
grade level cohort of
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between the 
percentage at Level
3 and 4 on the 
previous year’s ELA
exam and 75 percent
at Level 3 and 4 on 

NYS ELA exams Not Met 

NYS ELA exams Met 

NYS ELA exams Not Met 

instruction through
ongoing professional
development and
bimonthly
instructional 
coaching. 

• We will continue to 
provide RTI supports
to students 
performing below
grade level outside of
the classrooms in 
small groups. 

We will also 
implement Saturday
Academy program for
scholars performing
below the 28th 
percentile. Complete
skills assessments at 
the end of each cycle
will be used to 
evaluate the 
effectiveness of the 
program. 

RYCS will continue 
using flexible groups
to facilitate learning
for one period
weekly. 

This goal can only be
measured for 3rd as 
it was the only
testing grade
enrolled in 2017 18. 

To meet this goal in
2019 20, we will 
utilize the 
improvement 
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the current year’s strategies outlined in
state ELA exam. Academic Goal 1. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
4 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 

75% of students who 
have attended the 
school for at least 
one year will score at
Levels 3 or 4 on the 
New York State 
mathematics exam. 

Students will 
outperform CSD 9
students by 10%, as
measured by the
percentage at Levels
3 and 4 in the same 
grades on the state
mathematics exam. 

Each year, each
grade level cohort of
students will reduce 
by one half the gap
between the 
percentage at Level
3 and 4 on the 
previous year’s Math
exam and 75 percent
at Level 3 and 4 on 

NYS Math exams Met 

NYS Math exams Met 

NYS Math exams Met 

RYCS missed this goal
by only 2 percentage
points for 3rd and 4th
grade. 

To further support
students in meeting
this goal, RYCS will
use flexible groups to
facilitate learning for
one period weekly. In
addition, we will 
continue to provide
RTI supports to
students performing
below grade level
outside of the 
classrooms in small 
groups and
implement Saturday
Academy program for
scholars performing
below the 28th 
percentile. Complete
skills assessments at 
the end of each cycle
will be used to 
evaluate the 
effectiveness of the 
program. 

3 / 9 
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7 

the current year’s
state Math exam. 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

75% of students who 
have attended the 
school for at least 
one year will score at
Levels 3 or 4 on the 
New York State 4th 
grade science exam. 

Yalow students will 
outperform the local
school district by
10%, as measured by
the percentage at
Levels 3 and 4 on the 
state 4th grade
science exam. Yalow 
students will 
outperform the local
school district by
10%, as measured by
the percentage at
Levels 3 and 4 on the 
state 4th grade
science exam. 

Each year, the school
will attain a status of 
“In Good Standing”
under the state’s 
Accountability 
system. 

NYS 4th Grade Met Science exam 

NYS 4th Grade Met Science exam 

New York State 
Accountability Met 
System 

In Math this goal was
met in 2nd 4th 
grades, but not k 1st
grades. To further
support students in
meeting this goal,
RYCS will use flexible 
groups to facilitate
learning for one
period weekly. 

To meet the goal for
Reading in the 2019
20 school year, the
following efforts will
be taken: 

• Guided reading will 

4 / 9 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	
	 	

	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	
	 	
	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

At the end of each 
Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

year, the average
percentile ranking
will be at least 50% 

NWEA MAP 
STEP Literacy 

Not Met 

in reading and math. 

remain hard 
scheduled as an 
integral part of the
reading program with
the addition of mini 
schedule block to 
build targeted skills.
For example, the first
15 minutes of the 45
minute Skills block is 
devoted to phonics
and word work with 
support from the RTI
reading Intervention
teacher as needed. 

• The school will 
continue to 
strengthen teacher
capacity in reading
instruction through
ongoing professional
development and
bimonthly
instructional 
coaching. 

• We will continue to 
provide RTI supports
to students 
performing below
grade level outside of
the classrooms in 
small groups. 

We will also 
implement Saturday
Academy program for
scholars performing
below the 28th 
percentile. Complete
skills assessments at 
the end of each cycle
will be used to 
evaluate the 
effectiveness of the 
program. 

RYCS will continue 
using flexible groups
to facilitate learning
for one period
weekly. 
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2. Do have more academic goals (No response) 
to add? 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 

At the end of each 
year, 100% of
students will have 
achieved their 
growth target in
reading and math
based on mean 
growth in the latest
norming study for
students starting in
the same 10 point
Rasch unit (RIT)
block. 

NWEA MAP Not Met STEP Literacy 

MATH 
• Systematically
monitor math 
instruction weekly by
way of analyzing data
from exit tickets, unit 
and interim 
assessments; 
• Continue 
implementation of
the Lesson Study
process to improve
instructional 
practices
• Institute summer 
curriculum mapping
to develop/review the
scope and sequence
• Continue use of the 
math lesson plan
feedback form to 
improve instructional
practices.
• Monitor data and 
assessments to 
inform instruction 
and develop a
remediation 
curriculum 

READING 
• Monitor and review 
student performance
monthly using unit
assessment tools 
embedded within the 
CKLA curriculum 
• Strengthen student
achievement based 
on teacher created 
goals from STEP
Literacy data 

6 / 9 
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• Increase leadership
oversight of literacy
programs through
weekly
observations/walk
throughs
• Provide additional 
support using
members of the RTI 
team (2 reading
intervention 
teachers) to support
K 2 scholars who 
perform well below
grade level on 
assessments 

Academ 
ic Goal 
12 

Academ 
ic Goal 
13 

Academ 
ic Goal 
14 

Academ 
ic Goal 
15 

Academ 
ic Goal 
16 

Academ 
ic Goal 
17 

Academ 
ic Goal 
18 

Academ 
ic Goal 
19 

Academ 
ic Goal 
20 

7 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

3. Do have more academic goals No 

to add? 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Org
Goal 1 

Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

Org
Goal 5 

Org
Goal 6 

Org
Goal 7 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

Org
Goal 14 

Organizational Goal Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

8 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational (No response) 
goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Financia 
l Goal 1 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

Financia 
l Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 

Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

9 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 07/25/2019 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 9096213 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 443 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 20552 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 

Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

612164 

787230 

1399394 

3162 

2 / 2 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

BRONX, NEW YORK 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

REPORT REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

AND 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
  
 
   
 
  
 
 
 
  
  
 

 
   
  
    
 
 

CONTENTS 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PAGE 

Independent Auditor’s Report 3 

Statement of Financial Position 5 

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 6 

Statement of Functional Expenses 7 

Statement of Cash Flows 8 

Notes to Financial Statements 9 

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 18 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

   
 

 
    

    
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
   

  

 
  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year 
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s June 30, 2018 financial statements, and we expressed 
an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated September 26, 2018. In our 
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018 is 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 18, 2019 on our 
consideration of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
September 18, 2019 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash 

  Grants and other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

ASSETS 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

$ 

June 30, 
2019 

2,678,678 $ 
127,167 
348,014 

3,153,859 

2018 

1,644,895 
259,713
295,163 

2,199,771 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 310,249 320,178 

OTHER ASSETS
  Deposits 
  Cash in escrow 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 

391,570 
75,017 

3,930,695 $ 

391,570
75,000 

2,986,519 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 
  Deferred revenue 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

$ 177,917 $ 
358,167 

21,339 

557,423 

132,143 
239,755

12,163 

384,061 

DEFERRED LEASE LIABILITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

20,665

578,088 

-

384,061 

NET ASSETS
  Without donor restriction 
  With donor restriction 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 

3,347,107 
5,500 

3,352,607 

3,930,695 $ 

2,598,458
4,000 

2,602,458 

2,986,519 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL  

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Year ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and support:
  State and local per pupil
    operating revenue 
  Federal grants 
  State grants 
  Fundraising 
  Contributed goods and services 

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 

Without donor 
restriction 

$ 9,631,770 
456,928 
231,319 
10,870 
24,235

10,355,122 

2019 
With donor 
restriction 

$ -
-
-

1,500 
-

1,500 

Total 

$ 9,631,770 
456,928
231,319
12,370
24,235

10,356,622 

$

2018 

Total 

    6,864,568 
        403,819 
        159,864 
            9,731
          39,705 

7,477,687 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 

Special education 
  Management and general 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

6,177,831 
1,999,055 
1,429,587

9,606,473

-
-
-

-

6,177,831
1,999,055
1,429,587

9,606,473 

     3,861,367 
     1,271,160 
     1,060,433 

6,192,960 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 748,649 1,500 750,149 1,284,727 

Net assets at beginning of year 
NET ASSETS 

AT END OF YEAR 

2,598,458

$ 3,347,107 

 4,000  

$  5,500  

2,602,458

$ 3,352,607 $ 

     1,317,731 

2,602,458 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel
  Instructional personnel
  Non-instructional personnel
Total salaries and wages

No. of 
Positions 

16 50.5 

4.0 
70.5 

$ 

Regular 
Education 

690,258    2,467,187 

79,018 
   3,236,463 

Program Services 

Special 
Education 

$ 140,468 
                909,636 
                  15,588 
             1,065,692 

$ 

Sub-total 

      830,726 

3,376,823 

94,606 4,302,155 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2019 

Supporting Services 
Management 

and 
Fundraising General 

-
$ 

553,190 
-

-

-

325 
- 553,515 

$ 

Sub-total 

553,190 

-325 
        553,515 

$ 

Total 

1,383,916 
3,376,823 

94,931 4,855,670 

$ 

2018 

Total 

940,418 
    2,384,681 

                108,343 

             3,433,442 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes
Retirement
Legal services
Accounting/Audit services
Other Purchased/Professional/Consulting Services
Building and Land Rent/Lease
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies/Materials
Equipment/Furnishings
Staff development
Marketing/Recruitment
Technology
Food service
Student services
Office expense
Depreciation and amortization
Other

 $ 

612,419 

22,037 

-
-

137,532 
1,308,181 

158,426 

43,867 
62,060 
186,872 

8,157 166,718 

80,762 
99,313 

5,936 
24,936 
24,152 

-
-

6,177,831 $ 

                201,655 
                    7,256

 -

-                  61,137 
    430,753 

        52,166 
                  14,444 
                  20,435 

   36,375 
          2,686 

  34,221 
       25,572 

                  32,701 
 1,155 

    4,854 
                    7,953 

-
-1,999,055 $ 

814,074 

29,293 

-
-

      198,669 

1,738,934 

210,592 

58,311 
82,495 
223,247 

10,843 
200,939 
106,334 
132,014 

7,091 
29,790 
32,105 

-
-

8,176,886 $ 

-
- -

-
-

-
-

-

-
-

-
-
-

- -

-
-

-
$ 

104,739 

3,769 
40,208 
223,549 

23,522 223,731 

27,095 

7,502 
10,614 

-1,395 
2,247 
12,516 
16,985 

-63,326 
87,421 
27,453 1,429,587 $ 

   104,739 
                    3,769 
                  40,208 

          223,549 
                  23,522 

            223,731 
                  27,095 
                    7,502 

 10,614 

-  1,395 
                    2,247 
                  12,516 
                  16,985 

-

-                  63,326 
              87,421 

                  27,453 

1,429,587 $ 

918,813 

33,062 
40,208 
223,549 
222,191 1,962,665 

237,687 

65,813 
93,109 
223,247 

12,238 
203,186 
118,850 
148,999 

7,091 
29,790 
95,431 
87,421 
27 453 9,606,473 $ 

603,742 
19,796 

133,319 
151,445 
252,646 
716,667 
108,302 

25,162 
62,104 

161,429 
1,535 

113,765 
95,746 
92,998 
1,365 

23,154 
64,011 

128,460 
3,872

6,192,960 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 
      Donation of property and equipment 
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables 

Prepaid expenses 
Deposits 

        Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
        Accrued payroll and benefits 
        Deferred revenue 
        Deferred lease liability 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment 
  Increase in cash in escrow 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 

Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

Year ended June 30, 
2019 2018 

750,149 $ 1,284,727 

87,421 128,460
(3,074) (39,705)

132,546 (40,781)
(52,851) (135,442)

- (382,620)
45,774 47,169

118,412 65,787
9,176 (1,864)

20,665 (183,333) 

1,108,218 742,398 

(74,418) (102,473)
(17) (25,000) 

(74,435) (127,473) 

1,033,783 614,925 

1,644,895 1,029,970 

2,678,678 $ 1,644,895 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that operates as a charter 
school in Bronx, New York. The Charter School engages its students in a process of inquiry. The students are 
equipped with the necessary skills to lead fulfilling personal and professional lives, including a developed sense 
of self, the ability to think in innovative and flexible ways, and the inspiration to make a positive impact on their 
community. On June 24, 2014 the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York granted the 
Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration on June 30, 
2020.  

Basis of accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Classification of net assets 
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Charter School, 
the accounts of the Charter School are maintained in accordance with the principles of accounting for not-for-profit 
organizations.  This is the procedure by which resources are classified for reporting purposes into net asset groups, 
established according to their nature and purpose. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been recorded and 
reported by net asset group. 

The assets, liabilities, activities and net assets of the Charter School are reported in the following self-balancing net 
asset groups: 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The 
Board of Trustees has discretionary control to use these in carrying on operations in accordance with the 
guidelines established by the Charter School. 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. 
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the 
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, 
or both. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Charter School had $5,500 and $4,000, respectively, in net assets with 
donor restrictions for the library and their reading program.  

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Contributions 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period received. All 
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the 
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net 
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets 
released from restrictions.   

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account 
balances at any given time may exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any 
losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.  

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  
The agreement requires $25,000 be placed in escrow each of the first three years of operations and a balance of 
$75,000 be maintained to fund any audit and legal expenses incurred should the Charter School cease operations 
and dissolve. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used 
reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no allowance 
for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 or 2018. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which range 
from three to seven years.  Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the term of the lease. 

Deposits 
Deposits are made up of payments made to third parties in connection with facility lease agreements. 

Contributed goods and services 
The Charter School received transportation services, a nurse, speech therapist, occupational therapist, physical 
therapist, food supplies and services and lease assistance from the local district.  The Charter School was unable 
to determine a value for these services. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

The Charter School received donated property and equipment during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018. 
Donated goods are valued at the fair value of the items at the date of donation. The Charter School valued the 
goods received during the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 at $3,074 and $39,705, respectively. This amount 
is included in contributed goods and services in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net 
assets and in property and equipment on the statement of financial position.  

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years ended 
June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2019 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS.  Management of the Charter 
School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it will not recognize any liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $118,800 and $95,700 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at 
which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Deferred lease liability 
The Charter School leases its facility. The lease contains pre-determined fixed escalation of the base rent. In 
accordance with GAAP, the Charter School recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over three 
years which is the lease term and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts 
payable under the lease as a deferred lease liability. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Change in accounting principle 
During August 2016 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”. The main provisions of ASU 2016-14 require a 
Not-For-Profit (NFP) to: 

1) Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of 
the period, rather than three classes. That is, an NFP will report amounts for net assets with donor restrictions 
and net assets without donor restrictions, as well as the currently required amount for total net assets. 

2) Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net 
assets (noted in item 1) rather than that of the required three classes as in prior years. An NFP would continue 
to report the currently required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3) Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows using 
either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure of the 
indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method. 

4) Provide enhanced disclosures about:  

a) Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period and how the restrictions affect 
the use of resources. 

b) Qualitative information that communicates how a NFP manages its liquid resources available to meet 
cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. 

c) Quantitative information, and additional qualitative information, that communicates the availability of 
an NFP’s financial assets at the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. Availability of a financial asset 
may be affected by (1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and contracts 
with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by Board of Trustee decisions. 

d) Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional classification. That analysis 
of expenses is to be provided in one location. 

e) Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 

ASU 2016-14 is effective for financial statements beginning after December 15, 2017 and was applied 
retrospectively except for disclosures regarding liquidity and availability of resources, which are presented only 
for the current year. There was no effect on total assets or changes in net assets. The Charter School has adopted 
the amendments effective July 1, 2018. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

New accounting pronouncements 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a new standard related to revenue 
recognition. Under the standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or 
services in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods 
or services. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. The Charter School is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard to 
determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter School’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and comparability 
among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease liabilities on the statement 
of financial position.  Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and 
lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. GAAP.  For 
nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020.  The Charter School is 
currently evaluating the provisions of this standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the 
Charter School’s financial position or results of operations. 

Comparatives for the year ended June 30, 2018 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net 
asset class or functional classification.  Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Reclassifications 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through September 18, 2019, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE B: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The Charter School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments. The Charter School’s main source of liquidity is its cash accounts. 

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Charter 
School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of teaching, and public service as well as the 
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Charter School 
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not 
covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the sources and uses 
of the Charter School’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal year 2019. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30, 2019: 

Amount 

Cash
Grants and other receivables

Total financial assets available to management 
for general expenditures within one year

 $ 

$ 

2,678,678 
127,167 

2,805,845 

NOTE C: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

2019 
June 30, 

2018 

Furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold improvements 
Office equipment 
Computers and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

$ 290,501 $ 
24,586 
38,118 

319,179 

672,384 
362,135 

$ 310,249 $ 

262,528 
90,571 
32,901 

208,892 

594,892 
274,714 

320,178 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE D: RENT EXPENSE

The Charter School signed a lease extension for its facility with a third party renewing an existing lease to a term 
of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021, at fixed amount of $105,000 per month. On June 5, 2018, the Charter 
School signed a lease agreement with a third party for an additional facility. This lease commenced on July 1, 
2018 with an expiration date of June 30, 2021, at $56,800 per month for the first year, and a three percentage 
increase the next two years. Total rental expense was approximately $1,963,000 and $717,000 for the years 
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The future minimum payments on these agreements are 
approximately as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 1,962,000 
2021 1,984,000 

Total $ 3,946,000 

NOTE E: OPERATING LEASES 

The Charter School leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring at various dates 
through August 2021. The approximate future minimum payment on these lease agreements are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 21,800 
2021 20,700 
2022  600 

Total  $ 43,100 

NOTE F: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in disallowance 
of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that such 
disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, no 
amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2019 
(With Comparative Totals for 2018) 

NOTE G: CONCENTRATIONS 

Approximately 51% of grants and other receivables are due from various New York State agencies relating to 
certain grants at June 30, 2018. There were no amounts due from New York State agencies at June 30, 2019.  
Approximately 99% and 47% of grants and other receivables are due from the federal government relating to 
certain grants at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 93% and 92%, respectively, of total operating 
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding provided by the New York City School District. The per-pupil 
rate is set annually by the State based on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located. 

NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School sponsors a 401(k) retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its employees.  The Plan allows for the 
Charter School to make discretionary contributions to the Plan.  The Charter School contributed approximately 
$33,000 and $19,800 to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

NOTE I: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
All expenses that are allocated to more than one program or supporting function are allocated on the basis of 
estimates of time and effort. 

NOTE J: RENEWAL PROCESS 

The Charter School is currently in the process of renewing its charter as granted by The New York State Board 
of Regents. The Charter currently expires June 30, 2020. The renewal process includes review by New York 
State Department of Education (NYSED) of various operational and governance aspects, including fiscal health 
and internal controls, board governance, and academic performance. The Charter School has submitted its 
application for renewal. Upon review of the application and results, NYSED will determine if the charter should 
be renewed and if so, for how long. Successful charter renewals can range from one to five years. At this time, 
management of the Charter School expects the charter to be renewed. 
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ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
   

    
 

 
     

 
       

  
    

 

 
 

 

       
   

 
  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 18, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Rosalyn Yalow Charter School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
September 18, 2019 
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Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

2019 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,678,678 
Grants and contracts receivable 126,331 
Accounts receivables 836 
Prepaid Expenses 348,014 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS  3,153,859 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 310,249 
 estricted Cash 75,017 
Security Deposits 391,570 
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 776,836 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,930,695 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 177,917 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 358,167 
Current Portion of Loan Payable -
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 21,339 
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 557,423
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ -
Deferred  ent 20,665 
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 20,665 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  578,088 



               
                        

                               
 

             

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted $ 3,347,107 
Temporarily restricted 5,500 
Permanently restricted -

TOTAL  ET ASSETS  3,352,607 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 3,930,695 



  
   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

               
                    
                        
                    
                               

                               

                  
                      
                    

                               

          

                  
                    
                               
                               
                               
                      

                               

                             
                               
                               

                               
 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter Sc 
Statement of Financial Po  

as of June 30 

2018 

CURRE T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,644,895 
Grants and contracts receivable 252,307 
Accounts receivables 7,406 
Prepaid Expenses 281,043 
Contributions and other receivables -
Other current assets -

TOTAL CURRE T ASSETS 2,185,651 

 O -CURRE T ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net $ 320,178 
 estricted Cash 75,000 
Security Deposits 405,690 
Other Non-Current Assets -

TOTAL  O -CURRE T 800,868 
ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,986,519 

CURRE T LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 132,143 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefts 239,755 
Current Portion of Loan Payable -
Due to  elated Parties -
 efundable Advances -
Deferred  evenue 12,163 
Other Current Liabilities -

TOTAL CURRE T 384,061
LIABILITIES 

LO G-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year $ -
Deferred  ent -
Due to  elated Party -
Other Long-Term Liabilities -

TOTAL LO G-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 384,061 



 

   

 
                        

                               

          

 ET ASSETS 
Unrestricted $2,598,458.25 
Temporarily restricted 4,000 
Permanently restricted -

TOTAL  ET ASSETS 2,602,458 

TOTAL LIABILITIES A D  ET ASSETS 2,986,519 
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TOTAL OPERATI G REVE UE  10,320,017 

EXPE SES
 Program Services
  egular Education $ 6,177,831  $ 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

2019 
Unrestricted Temporarily

Restricted 

OPERATI G REVE UE
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue -  eg. Ed $ 6,754,596  $ 
 State and Local Per Pupil  evenue - SPED 935,174
 State and Local Per Pupil Facilities  evenue 1,942,000
 Federal Grants 456,928
 State and City Grants 231,319
 Other Operating Income -
 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program -

 Special Education 1,999,055
 Other Programs -

-

 Total Program Services  8,176,886 
 Management and general 1,429,587  
 Fundraising -
TOTAL EXPE SES  9,606,473 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIO S  713,544 

SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE
 Interest and Other Income $ - $ -
 Contributions and Grants 10,870 1,500
 Fundraising Support - -
 Investments - -
 Donated Services - -
 Other Support and  evenue 24,235 -

TOTAL SUPPORT A D OTHER REVE UE  35,105 1,500 

 et Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on $ - $ -
   

CHA GE I   ET ASSETS  748,649 1,500 

 ET ASSETS - BEGI  I G OF YEAR $ 2,602,458 $ -



                                                              

      

- -PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTME TS 

 ET ASSETS - E D OF YEAR  $ 3,351,107 $ 1,500 



    

             
                  
                  
                  
                  

                              
                              

             
               

                              

               
                              

                            
                      

                              
                              
                              

                    

                            

             

2018 
Total Total

 $ 6,754,596 $ 5,349,981
 935,174 614,587

 1,942,000 900,000
 456,928 403,819
 231,319 159,864

 - -
- -

10,320,017 7,428,251 

$ 6,177,831 $ 3,861,364
 1,999,055 1,271,159

 - -
8,176,886 5,132,522 
1,429,587 1,060,437

 - -
9,606,473 6,192,959 

713,544 1,235,292 

$ - $ -
12,370 9,731

 - -
- -
- -

24,235 39,704
 36,605 49,435 

$ - $ -

750,149 1,284,727 

$ 2,602,458 $ 1,317,731 



                               - -

$ 3,352,607 $ 2,602,458 



  
   

  

   
                              

                                             
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                
                                            
                                            
                                
                                  
                                            
                                
                                            
                                            
                                    
                                            
                                  

                                  
   

   
                                

                                       
   

   
                                            

                                            
    

   

                             
    

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of Ju 

2019 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATI G ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 750,149 
 evenues from School Districts -
Accounts  eceivable -
Due from School Districts -
Depreciation 87,421 
Grants  eceivable 132,546 
Due from NYS -
Grant revenues -
Prepaid Expenses (52,851) 
Accounts Payable 45,774 
Accrued Expenses -
Accrued Liabilities 118,412 
Contributions and fund-raising activities -
Miscellaneous sources -
Deferred  evenue 9,176 
Interest payments -
Other (3,074) 

Other 20,665 
 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATI G ACTIVITIES  $ 1,108,218 

CASH FLOWS - I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Purchase of equipment (74,418) 
Other (17) 

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM I VESTI G ACTIVITIES  $ (74,435) 

CASH FLOWS - FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ 
Principal payments on long-term debt -
Other -

 ET CASH PROVIDED FROM FI A CI G ACTIVITIES  $ -

 ET (DECREASE) I CREASE I  CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS $ 1,033,783 
Cash at beginning of year 1,644,895 

CASH A D CASH EQUIVALE TS AT E D OF YEAR  $ 2,678,678 



 

                           
                                            
                                            
                                            
                                
                                
                                            
                                            
                              
                                  
                                            
                                  
                                            
                                            
                                  
                                            
                                

                              

                              

                              

                                            

                                            
 

                             

une 30 

2018 

$ 1,284,728 
-
-
-

128,461 
(40,781) 

-
-

(135,442) 
47,168 

-
65,787 

-
-

(1,864) 
-

$ 

(39,705) 

(183,333)
1,125,019 

$ 

$ 

(102,474) 

(407,620)
(510,094)

 $ 
-

-
$ -

$ 614,925 

1,029,970
 $ 1,644,895 



  
   
   

 
  

                                          
                                       
                                                

  
                          
                                
                                                   
                                                   
                                                   

                          
  

                       
                            
                              
                              
                            
                                  
                            
                              
                              

                                   
                                
                                

     

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

2019 
Program Services Sup 

No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising 
Positions Education Education Education 

Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $  $ 
Administrative Staf Personnel 16.00 690,258 140,468  - 830,726 
Instructional Personnel 50.50 2,467,187 909,636  -3,376,823 
Non-Instructional Personnel 4.00 79,018 15,588  - 94,606 

Total Salaries and Staf  70.50 3,236,463 1,065,692 -4,302,155 
Fringe Benefts & Payroll Taxes 612,419 201,655  - 814,074 
 etirement 22,037 7,256  - 29,293 
Management Company Fees - - - -
Legal Service - - - -
Accounting / Audit Services - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 137,532 61,137

 - 198,669 

Building and Land  ent / Lease 1,308,181 430,753  -1,738,934 
 epairs & Maintenance 158,426 52,166  - 210,592 
Insurance 43,867 14,444  - 58,311 
Utilities 62,060 20,435  - 82,495 
Supplies / Materials 186,872 36,375  - 223,247 
Equipment / Furnishings 8,157 2,686  - 10,843 
Staf Development 166,718 34,221  - 200,939 
Marketing  /  ecruitment 80,762 25,572  - 106,334 
Technology 99,313 32,701  - 132,014 
Food Service 5,936 1,155  - 7,091 
Student Services 24,936 4,854  - 29,790 
Ofce Expense 24,152 7,953  - 32,105 



                                                   

                                                   

   

Depreciation 
OTHE  

-

-

-

-

-
-

-
-

Total Expenses  $ 6,177,831 $ 1,999,055 $ - $ 8,176,886 $ -



 

                            
                                      
                                   

                            
                                  
                                                      
                              
                            

                              
                            
                              
                                  
                                
                                         
                                    
                                 
                                
                                
                                             
                                           
                                

 
 

 

2018 
pporting Services 
Management
and General 

Total Total 

$  $  $  $ 
553,190  553,190 1,383,916 940,418 

- -3,376,823 2,384,681 
325  325 94,931 108,343
 553,515 553,515 4,855,670 3,433,442 

104,739  104,739 918,813 603,742 
3,769  3,769 33,062 19,796 

- - - -
40,208  40,208 40,208 133,319 
223,549  223,549 223,549 151,445 

23,522 222,191 
23,522 252,646 
223,731  223,731 1,962,665 716,667 
27,095  27,095 237,687 108,302 
7,502  7,502 65,813 25,162 
10,614  10,614 93,109 62,104 

- - 223,247 161,428 
1,395  1,395 12,238 1,535 
2,247  2,247 203,186 113,765 
12,516  12,516 118,850 95,746 
16,985  16,985 148,999 92,997 

- - 7,091 1,365 
- - 29,790 23,154 

63,326  63,326 95,431 64,012 



                              

                                  

87,421  87,421 87,421 128,461 

27,453  27,453 27,453 3,872
 $ 1,429,587 $ 1,429,587 $ 9,606,473 $ 6,192,960 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Created: 07/18/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not Applicable. The school does not have a Management Letter 
the Management Letter. this year. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109714704/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading Not yet available. An extension has been filed. 
the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A. The school did not expend $750,000 in federal funding. 
the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading N/A. The school did not receive CSP funding. 
the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109714704/pN6H0Nalce/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 
the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 
include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 
(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Not Applicable. A Corrective Action Plan was not required per 
the FY19 audit. the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 



EXTENSION FILING INSTRUCTIONS 

FORM 8868 FOR FORM 990 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2019~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Prepared for ALEC DIACOU 
ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 
116 EAST 169TH STREET 
BRONX, NY 10452 

Prepared by 
MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
100 CHESTNUT STREET, SUITE 1200 
ROCHESTER, NY 14604 

Amount due NOT APPLICABLE 

Make check 
payable to NOT APPLICABLE 

Mail extension 
and check (if 
applicable) to NOT APPLICABLE 

Extension 
must be mailed 
on or before 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Special 
Instructions THE EXTENSION FOR FORM 990 HAS QUALIFIED FOR ELECTRONIC 

FILING. FORM 8868 EXTENDS THE DUE DATE OF THE ORGANIZATION'S 
FORM 990 RETURN UNTIL MAY 15, 2020. THE EXTENSION HAS BEEN 
TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE IRS AND NO FURTHER ACTION IS 
REQUIRED. 

800085 
04-01-18 





                                   

001/R1/20F000Citibank CBO Services 046 
P.O. Box 6201 055 
Sioux Falls, SD 57117-6201 CITIBANK, N. A. 

Account 
 

Statement Period 
ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL Jun 1 - Jun 30, 2019 
116 EAST 169TH STREET Relationship Manager
BRONX NY 10452 Citibusiness Service Center 

(877) 528-0990 
Page 1 of 4 

CitiBusiness®  ACCOUNT AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 

Relationship Summary: 

Checking $2,980,762.39 
Savings -----
Checking Plus -----

Checking Balance 
CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking $75,016.54 
CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking $2,905,745.85 

Total Checking at Citibank $2,980,762.39 

SERVICE CHARGE SUMMARY FROM MAY 1, 2019 THRU MAY 31, 2019 

Type of Charge No./Units Price/Unit Amount 

STREAMLINED CHECKING #  

Average Daily Collected Balance $75,016.54 

Total Charges for Services $0.00 

Net Service Charge $0.00 

STREAMLINED CHECKING #  

Average Daily Collected Balance $3,902,708.08 

DEPOSIT SERVICES 
CHECKS, DEP ITEMS/TICKETS, ACH 75 .4500 33.75 

**WAIVE 

Total Charges for Services $0.00 

Net Service Charge $0.00 

CHECKING ACTIVITY 

CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking 
 Beginning Balance: $75,016.54 

Ending Balance: $75,016.54 

CitiBusiness Streamlined Checking 
 Beginning Balance: $3,471,839.11 

Ending Balance: $2,905,745.85 











   
   

      
                        

  

 
 

 
  

   

  
  

   
  

      
      
    
    
    

  

  
  

    

   
  

 
   

    

      
  

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

 

Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR MANAGEMENT & SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

7,901,704 2,120,167 - - 1,947,708 
7,848,012 2,074,635 - 72,000 1,901,191 

53,691 45,532 - (72,000) 46,516 
460 

460 

76 

76 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

PROGRAM SERVICES 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue 

District 10 Per Pupil Rate for FY20 

District 10 Per Pupil Rate for FY19 

School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

$16,154.00 6,234,152 

-
-
-
-

6,234,152 

779,269 

-
-
-
-

779,269 

-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

1,645,123 

-
-
-
-

1,645,123 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

- 853,739 - - -

Stimulus 

Other - State 

Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

-
71,392 

1,354,348 

7,659,891 

-
19,101 

362,360 

2,014,470 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
12,954 

245,752 

1,903,830 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs - 41,000 - - -
Title I 147,963 39,588 - - 26,849 

Title Funding - Other 33,816 9,048 - - 6,136 

School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - -
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other - Federal 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

-
-
-

181,780 

-
-
-

89,636 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

32,985 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

1,725 

27,235 

-
-

462 

7,287 

-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

313 

4,942 

-
-

- - - - -
31,072 8,314 - - 5,638 

-
60,033 

-
16,062 

- - -
10,893 

TOTAL REVENUE 7,901,704 2,120,167 1,947,708 

EXPENSES No. of 



   
 

 
   

    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  
  

 

  

  
 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 
 

     
    

  
   

  
 

   

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS FY20 

Executive Management 1 

Instructional Management 4 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3 

CFO / Director of Finance -
Operation / Business Manager 1 

Administrative Staff 11 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 20 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 41 

Teachers - SPED 5 

Substitute Teachers -
Teaching Assistants -
Specialty Teachers 22 

Aides 3 

Therapists & Counselors 1 

Other - Staffing -
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 72 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse -
Librarian -
Custodian -
Security -
Other - Non-Instruct -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

92 

383,974 102,733 - - 69,674 

469,205 125,537 - - 85,139 

42,446 11,357 - - 7,702 

895,625 239,628 162,515 

57,368 24,586 - - 81,955 

375,593 62,054 - - -
222,834 36,816 - - 28,850 

- - - - -
20,600 10,300 - - 72,100 

- - - - 638,089 

676,395 133,757 820,994 

2,420,023 399,830 - - -
- 375,000 - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

1,130,377 186,758 - - -
94,746 15,654 - - -
12,000 68,000 - - -

190,982 31,553 - - -
3,848,128 1,076,795 

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

4,524,523 1,210,552 820,994 

5,420,147 1,450,179 983,508 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Management Company Fee 

Nurse Services 

Food Service / School Lunch 

Payroll Services 

Special Ed Services 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

-
-
-
-
-

4,969 

-
-
-
-
-

1,329 

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

187,000 

100,000 

-
-
-

902 

- 16,900 - - -
- - - - -

117,322 

122,291 

31,390 

49,619 

- - 21,289 

309,190 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

Board Expenses 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials 

Textbooks / Workbooks 

Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 

Telephone 

Technology 

Student Testing & Assessment 

- - - - 26,500 

124,238 20,526 - - -
- 4,000 - - -

85,821 14,179 - - -
- - - - -

6,901 1,846 - - 1,252 

4,789 1,281 - - 869 

93,955 25,138 - - 17,048 

41,366 6,834 - - -





  

  

  

NET CASH INCOME 

Beginning Cash Balance 

ENDING CASH BALANCE 



 

        

  

  

      

   

      
             

        
    

    

  

         

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

FY20 TOTAL BUDGET 

11,969,579 
11,895,839 

73,740 
536 

536 

FY20 TOTAL 
BUDGET 

8,658,544 

-
-
-
-

8,658,544 

Enrollment: GenEd 536 @ FY20 rate $16,154 

853,739 SpEd @ 48 students 

-
103,448 

1,962,460 

11,578,191 

41,000 

214,400 

49,000 

-

-
-
-

304,400 

2,500 

39,464 

-
-
-

45,024 

-
86,988 

11,969,579 

Additional Per Pupil State Funding @ $193/student 
Facilities funding: Lesser of 30% of GenEd Per Pupil or full cost of lease 

Based on $1,000 for students in over 60% category. 
Based on enrollment x $500/student 
Title II & IV funding 

Contributions 

Erate 

NYSTL, NYSSL, NYSL BL 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 



 
          

       

  
            

       

             
 

    
           

    
 

 
             

   

    
              

             

     

 
 

           

 
            

  

 

            
              

163,909 

437,647 

288,500 

-
103,000 

638,089 

1,631,145 

2,819,853 

375,000 

-
-

1,317,135 

110,400 

80,000 

222,535 

4,924,923 

-
-
-
-
-

Executive Director 
Principal, Deputy Principal, Dean of Students, Dean of Students & Instruction 

Director of Assessment, Literacy Coach, Singapore Math Specialist 

Director of Operations 

Operations Mgr x2, Business Mgr, Operations Asst x2, Operations Assoc x3, Operations Parent 
        

Teachers, teacher social workers, Plus 2 additional teachers to fill vacancies or other needs 

SpEd teachers 

Budgeted under "other professional consulting" 
Teaching Fellows/Building Aids (was Teaching Assistants & Teaching Fellows in FY19) 
ELL, Fencing instructors, Chess instructors 

Part-time aides 

Social worker/therapist 
Stipends for summer chess & literacy, plus school year literacy program, Teacher bonuses, PTO 

    

6,556,068 

556,381 

679,882 

61,505 

1,297,767 

Social Security, Medicare, NYS SUI 
Health, Vision, Dental - Assuming current enrollees stay enrolled PLUS of 15 unenrolled, another 3 

        401k match (3%, 30% participation) + fees 

7,853,835 

187,000 

100,000 

-
-
-

7,200 

16,900 

-
170,000 

481,100 

26,500 

144,764 

4,000 

100,000 

-
10,000 

6,940 

136,141 

48,200 

Annual Audit, Financial Management Consultant (CSBM) 
Legal 

Payroll fees 

SpEd collaborative 

Arts consultant: Bronx Arts $156k ($13k/mo); ERate Consultant $4k; Subtitute Services $10k 

Board expenses/development 
Classroom, art, chess, & fencing supplies, classroom libraries, student software (IO Ed $15k), 

 

Textbooks & workbooks 

Non-capitalized furniture 

Phone 

Internet $49k, technology services: Charter Tech $70k plus $10k misc installation services, website 
     NWEA $20k, UChicago/STEP $20k, NYC Charter Center $4200, testing/assessment supplies $4k 
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Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Last updated: 07/29/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting No 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of 
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year. 

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file. 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110197473/wNFCVDEEJA/ 
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THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street• Bronx, New York, 10452 
• Phone: 347.735.5480 •info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes 

Tuesday, July 17,	2018,	6:00 p.m. 
116	East	169

th 
Street 

Bronx, New York	 10463 

Trustees Present 

Miguel Balbuena—Chair, Gregoria Feliciano, Ivan Lee, Benjamin Yalow 

Via Skype: Sandra Hayes – Vice Chair, Michael Rosen – Treasurer 

By Phone - Shirley Saunders – Secretary, Donna Friedman – Guest 

Staff: Letta Belle – Principal, Alec Diacou – Executive Director, Yvonne Booker-Byers – Director 

of Assessment 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Miguel Balbuena, Chairman.  A quorum was 

present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Acceptance of the Minutes of June 19, 2018 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on June 19, 2018 were 
unanimously approved. 

Executive Session 

Discussion ensued on several personnel and board governance matters, including accountability, 
CSBM’s FY18-19 contract, prospective new board members, bonuses, and formation of a new sub-
committee to address social-emotional issues among students and best practices for utilizing teacher-
social workers at Yalow. 

Board Approval Items: 

Authorization to Re-enter into Agreement With Charter School Business Management 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the executive director re-
entering into the proposed agreement with Charter School Business Management for 
FY 2018-2019. 



 

 

 
  

 

 
 
    

 

  

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
   

   
 

  
 

 

  

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

  

          
    

   

         
    

     

Bonus Proposal from June Board Meeting 
The Personnel Committee is working on a structure for awarding bonuses based on performance. 
Future bonuses will not be awarded unless an award structure is finalized. 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors approved the following 
resolution. 
Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves the FY2017-18 bonus schedule as 
submitted by the executive director to the finance committee on June 13 and the full 
board on June 19, pursuant to Yalow’s Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. 

Election of Donna Demetri Friedman to the Board of Trustees 

Following a discussion about Ms. Friedman’s initial election to the board at the September 19, 2017 
board meeting, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors 
unanimously approved the following resolution. 
Resolved: That the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees, having conducted 
a thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having discovered 
no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to SED if found, 
has voted to select Donna Demetri Friedman as a final candidate to its Board of 
Trustees, with a term expiring on August 31, 2018, pending approval by SED, and 
authorizes the executive director to submit an amended New Board of Trustee Member 
Review application to NYSED for its approval. The resolution approving Donna 
Demetri Friedman is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Formation of Social-Emotional Board Committee 

Following a discussion about the role of teacher-social workers and best practices for student 
behavior, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously 
approved the following resolution. 
Resolved: The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees forms a social-
emotional committee and appoints Donna Friedman as committee chairman. 

NYSED Mid-Term Site Visit Report and NYC DOE School Quality Guide (parent and 
teacher survey) for 2016-2017) tabled 

Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors 
approved the following resolution. 
Resolved: the Board of Trustees tables the agenda item discussion of NYSED Mid-
Term Site Visit Report and the NYC DOE School Quality Guide (parent and teacher 
survey) for 2016-2017) until the August 21, 2018 board meeting. 

Academics 

STEP Literacy 

Ms. Letta Belle reminded the Board that STEP Literacy/NWEA are tools used to monitor student 
growth in literacy and math, respectively, by grade level. STEP Literacy assessment is done in four 
testing cyles.  The first is the baseline where students are assessed at the beginning of the school year. 
One testing assessment was not conducted because the testing period for the first cycle exceeded the 
allotted time. (Attachment A: STEP/NWEA Growth Data, 2017-2018, End of Year Report) 

Ms. Belle stated there was a decline in the performance for the 1st graders. From the baseline 
assessment to cycle one they were making considerable progress but fell short of achieving the 
minimum three step levels of growth. Ms. Belle stated she has not had to opportunity to investigate 



 

 

       

        
     

   
         

         
        

      
      

        
   

       
        

  
     

   
       

    
        

      
  

   
    

  
 

      
  

  
    

 

 

    
     

   
   
    

    
  

  
  

  

      
  

   

why they performed poorly. Ms Hayes asked for the overall percentage by grade of what students are 
below grade level. Ms. Belle stated according to the STEP data overall 69% of students are 
performing below grade level. Ms. Hayes asked that Ms. Belle look into comparative data from other 
schools. See Appendix 2 provided by Ms. Belle for a full report on the STEP/NWEA growth data 
provided for 2017-2018.  Mr. Diacou stated data comparison can be obtained, however it may be on 
a broader cohort of schools than Yalow’s board needs. In addition, data comparisons may not reflect 
results for student’s mirroring Yalow’s demographics and may only be made with schools also using 
STEP Literacy assessments. The Urban Education Institute’s STEP data support team may be able 
to provide this data as they know which charter schools with similar demographics are using their 
assessments.  Ms. Hayes asked that Ms. Belle look into providing some kind of comparative data so 
the Board can have some means of judging Yalow’s performance compared to others. Ms. Booker-
Byers stated it’s important to note that although some children may not have hit the STEP target 
growth of three STEPs they may still be on grade level. Children who are at risk at not making their 
target are enrolled in RTI and Tier 2 intervention. 

Mr. Yalow stated theoretically, the sum of growth for students should equal the achievement and 
asked if longitudinal data was available for students who have been enrolled at the school for their 
entire school career. Currently there is no such data. This data would be useful in providing 
information on whether the academic program is working or not. Ms. Belle stated when a student 
who is disregulated or is displaying disruptive behavior and/or having difficulty academically they go 
through what is called a Child Find process. It starts in the classroom where a teacher will refer a 
student to the intervention team. After the referral a six-week plan is implemented and evaluated. At 
the conclusion of the six-week plan, many times it is discovered that problems are outside of the 
purview of the school. In these instances students are referred to Mossaic Mental Health clinic or 
may receive a referral to family support group. Parents are part of the invention team. Currently it is 
unknown how many students went through this process during the school year. Mr. Balbuena stated 
he is working on obtaining data on the cohort of students with special needs and how they perform 
academically. He is also working along with Ms. Belle to define the three intervention tiers to see if 
the support services are working. 

Ms. Belle stated the hiring of RTI staff has not begun because the primary focus was on getting the 
classroom teachers first. Mr. Balbuena stated the Charter notes that the director of assessment is 
responsible for overseeing the RTI’s, and asked Ms. Booker-Byers to take the lead in hiring the 4 
vacant RTI positions. Ms. Booker-Byers agreed and stated she will do all screening and schedule all 
interviews. 

There are a number of teachers who are not certified. Mr. Diacou stated 4 teacher-social workers 
dropped out of the Relay GSE master’s and transitional-B teacher certification program last year. 
They have been rehired for this year and given the opportunity to enroll in the program once again 
by August 1, 2018. Three have signed an agreement to do so, and one will not be returning to 
Yalow. To date, only one teacher-social worker has re-enrolled.  Come July 30th, teacher-social 
workers will be expecting to receive the board-approved salary increases. Mr. Diacou asked for the 
Board’s guidance on how to handle the matter of teacher-social worker obtaining their teaching 
certifications. Ms. Feliciano suggested sending a friendly reminder. In addition, Mr. Balbuena stated 
that in order to minimize disruption, the opportunity for enrollment in a teacher certification 
program should be extended to the beginning of the school year. 

Ms. Belle stated she has spoken with Mr. Balbuena about the plans for upcoming school year and 
what the focus for the academic program will be. She presented an outline of the Professional 
Development (PD) calendar. Some of the focus areas will be the new teacher 4-week training and 



 

 

 
   

  
     

   
  

    
 

  

    

   
 

  
 
 

   
     

 

    
    

   
 

 
    
  

     

 

 

         
  

     
   

   
  

 
  

  
 

   
 

      
   

 
   

two-week training for returning teachers. The topics range from co-teaching 101 to class room 
management and class room culture. A visit to the American Museum of Natural History will take 
place in addition to an overview of the Singapore math program that also includes East West Math 
who did the professional development last summer with the teachers. Each member of the academic 
leadership team is responsible for delivering 4 professional development sessions. Dates have been 
confirmed for full day PD sessions. Mr. Balbuena stated we are moving towards becoming a data-
driven school and asked Ms. Belle if she could assure the Board that every single teacher will be able 
to interpret classroom data and report it. Ms. Belle noted that was an area that needed significant 
attention and that it could be accomplished. 

Ms. Feliciano suggested engaging teachers who have been with the school since its inception to be a 
part of Professional Development.  She believes their experience and growth with the curriculum 
roll out will give new teachers an advantage. In addition, Mr. Balbuena would like for the Board do a 
welcome greet and meet at the August 30th orientation. 

Mr. Balbuena stated Professional Development time is geared toward solving real problems in the 
school and addressing what teachers believe to be important. Due to the importance of this, the 
academic leadership’s presence is vital. It was suggested vacation not be taken during this time. 

Ms. Belle stated she and Ms. Friedman held a focus group meeting with Yalow’s teacher-social 
workers. Ms. Friedman wanted to hear from these teachers about their experience to have a better 
sense of what their needs are. 

Ms. Belle stated that in designing the model for the social emotional support, it was not intended to 
have the social worker serve the dual role of teacher and social worker at the same time. To clarify, 
Ms. Friedman stated that the original idea was never intended to have the social worker become the 
therapist. Rather, the idea is that the social worker becomes the teacher and leader of social 
emotional ideas and responses to the child within the classroom. This is different from being a 
counselor or clinician. It’s essential to understand the different role of a social worker and therapist 
stated Ms. Friedman. Mr. Balbuena asked that this discussion be tabled until the next Board meeting 
so that Ms. Friedman can provide additional feedback. 

Operations 

Facility Updates 

Mr. Diacou reported that the contractors have started on the permit process for replacing the roof 
and rooftop HVAC units.  Once building department permits are approved, the roofer said it should 
take 3 weeks to complete the roof replacement. Currently the building still has major leaks. While the 
new HVAC system will take six weeks to be shipped, none of the old HVAC equipment will be 
removed until the new system is received. The Third Avenue campus is still being painted. Set-up at 
the new building will be minimal. Mr. Balbuena stated roofing plans at 169th Street should move 
forward as expeditiously as possible to avoid unexpected leaks and heating issues moving into the 
winter. 
Mr. Diacou stated the Board needs to have a discussion about whether we are going to survive as a 
school in order to properly plan for a permanent school building. He is looking at this from a 
banker’s perspective raising $25 to $30 million to open a new building. There are several issues to 
consider. Public funders will be looking at academic records, teacher turnover and student turnover. 
How much funding will be needed? Next year Yalow will submit a charter renewal request to 
NYSED. In that request we have to decide whether we want to be a K-8 school as anticipated by 
the original charter, or remain a K- 5 school. This will determine how big of a building and how 
much money is needed. Any lender, whether its Civic Builders, private bankers, or public bond 



 

 

    
   

  
 

 

 

      
    

           
 

 
 

        
       

  
       

  
     

 
      

  
 

          
 

 

  

 
 
  

  

 

 

 

 

markets, will be looking at the same Mid-Term Site Visit Report report that NYSED is giving the 
Board.  Ms. Feliciano observed that NYSED’s reports effectively serve as Yalow’s “credit reports” 
for lenders and serve as collateral when asking for money. Board recruitment is another issue lenders 
will consider. Having a full Board shows bankers that we have continuity and people have faith in 
our viability as an on-going school. 

Staff Grievances 

There are 3 pending staff grievances. Mr. Diacou said he would be happy to provide written legal 
responses to the board. 

Mr. Lee stated it would be helpful to have a monthly report of terminations and/or resignations. 

Finance Report 
Currently board meetings are held the third Tuesday of each month, although Yalow’s Bylaws state 
meetings will be held the second Tuesday. Mr. Balbuena stated he spoke to Collin Raymond and 
CSBM will not be able to prepare a month-end financial statement for board review by the 2nd 

Tuesday of the month—which means finance reports would be lagged.  As such, we should modify 
Bylaws will have to submit a charter revision statement to hold the meetings on the 3rd Tuesday of 
each month. Other charter revisions that have not been submitted are the Co-Chair position and Mr. 
Diacou and Ms. Belle new reporting structure to the Board. 

Personnel Committee 
Mr. Balbuena stated the board will be using BoardOnTrack’s methodology for evaluation of the 
Executive Director, and he is exploring a different tool for evaluation of the Principal, which is 
educationally driven. 

Mr. Balbuena is also working with the personnel committee to identify appropriate indicators for 
Yalow’s bonus structure. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:32 p.m. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, Secretary 

Approved by Board 

of Trustees on August 21, 2018 



     

       
    

  

 

 

 
 

  

  

	

		

	

 

    

 

  

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  

 

  

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street• Bronx, New York, 10452 
• Phone: 347.735.5480 •info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
Minutes 

Tuesday, August 21, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

116 East 169th Street 

Bronx, New York 10463 

Trustees Present 

Miguel Balbuena—Chair, Dr. Sandra Hayes – Vice Chair, Gregoria Feliciano, Ivan Lee 

Via Skype:  Michael Rosen – Treasurer 

By Phone - Shirley Saunders – Secretary 

Staff: Alec Diacou – Executive Director, Shannon Burton- Acting Principal 
Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Miguel Balbuena, Chairman.  A quorum was 
present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Executive Session 

At 6:05 p.m. the board went into Executive Session to discuss the principal selection process. The 
session ended at 7:23 p.m. Discussion ensued on several personnel and board governance matters, 
including accountability 

Personnel Committee 

Following Executive Session Mr. Lee reminded the board that Executive-Excellence is conducting 
the principal search process and recruiting candidates for board review. CSBM also referred a 
principal candidate. Mr. Diacou suggested all principal candidates be vetted through Executive 
Excellence, with which Yalow has a contract.  Executive Excellence will do much of the follow-up 
work. Mr. Lee will need two members of the Board to assist in the search of a new Principal. 

Mr. Balbuena informed the Board that in their packets there are two resumes one for Dr. Ross Lyon 
and the other for Lakiesha Howard, who are interested in becoming board members.  He is actively 
recruiting additional board members. 

The evaluation tool for the Executive Directive has been completed 

Board Approval Items 

Acceptance of the Minutes of September 19, 2017 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on September 19, 2017 
were unanimously approved. 



 

 

 

 

   

 

  

  

 

 

   
 

   
    

   
 

  
   

 
 

   
   

 
  

    
     

 
 

   
 

 

   

  
  

   
   

     
     

  
   

Acceptance of the Minutes of November 21, 2017 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on November 21, 

2017 were unanimously approved. 

Acceptance of the Minutes of March 20, 2018 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on March 20, 2018 were 

unanimously approved. 

Acceptance of the Minutes of July 17, 2018 

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the meeting held on July 17, 2018 were 
unanimously approved. 

Academics 

Mr. Balbuena informed the Board that Shannon Burton has taken on the role as the interim 
principal. Mr. Burton notified the Board that currently there are no teacher vacancies. Each new 
teacher hired is certified in addition to some being dual certified. Mr. Burton is in the process of 
seeking two additional teachers. The goal is to make sure all classes are staffed appropriately and that 
teachers feel they have support at all times. One major vacancy remaining is for the dean of students 
at the Third Avenue campus. The goal is to hire a seasoned candidate. Currently there are 3 
candidates.  Mr. Balbuena informed the Board that the Administrative Assistant position to the 
Principal has been changed to the Parent Engagement Coordinator position in order to meet the 
goals of the state and to build better relations with parents.  This position has been filled and is 
responsible for much of the outreach including keeping a careful watch on attendance and making 
home visits when necessary. 

The instructional focus for the year will be data driven using quarterly NWEA, STEP and CKLA 
assessments as a driver. Teachers will be evaluated and provided with feedback within 4 days. Mr. 
Burton hopes to meet with each teacher individually to discuss and assist in their goals for the 
school year. In addition, Mr. Burton stated there are 30-, 60- and 90-day goals for the academic 
leadership team. Schedules for the Bus Drill, Fire Drill and Shelter-in were provided for the 
academic year. Much of all new development is geared towards the improvement plan initially 
provided to the former principal. New system instructions will be produced in areas that need 
attention and will be presented to the Board. NYSED will also be notified of the new systems to 
rectify problematic areas. Mr. Balbuena and Ms. Feliciano will begin developing the data dashboard 
for the board based on the Children’s Aid Society format previously discussed. 

Operations/Facility Updates 

All necessary documents have been submitted for Dr. Donna Friedman to join the Board. 

The Third Avenue campus is on track to open with no issues.  The fire department will be 
conducting its inspection this Thursday, August 23, to obtain FDNY’s clearance to open the facility. 
The 169th Street site has FDNY violations from December for missing signage.   All required 
signage has been ordered, and will be in place for FDNY’s inspection also taking place this 
Thursday. The filing of the NYC Department of Building permit for reconstruction of the roof and 
replacement of the four rooftop HVAC units has taken longer than originally anticipated for various 
reasons, including requisite architectural drawings. DOB application and drawings will be filed this 
week and permits issued, after which demolition and construction will commence. 



 

 

  
 

   

  
 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

  

  

 

 
 
 
 

The new HVAC units have not come in yet, and existing units will not be removed until the new 
units have been received. 

Finance Update 

The Board will need to modify the signatories on the accounts.  Current signatories are Michael 
Rosen, Shirley Saunders, Alec Diacou, and John Carr, who recently resigned from the Board. 

Auditors are finalizing Yalow’s FY2017-18 audit for the year ending June 30, 2018, and a draft will 
be ready for board review at the September board meeting. 

Education Committee 

No business to discuss at this time. 

Social-Emotional Committee 

The board agreed with Dr. Donna Friedman’s suggestion of renaming the newly constituted social-
emotional committee as the Social-Emotional Program and Development Committee. Bank Street’s 
Emotionally Responsive Practices team will begin training Yalow staff members on August 30. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 

Submitted by 

Shirley Saunders, Secretary 

Approved by Board of Trustees on 

September 26, 2018 



     

       
    

   

 

 

 
 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

     

 

   

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 
   

 

   
 

 

 
 

  

 
  

 
 

 

   
   

THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street• Bronx, New York, 10452 
• Phone: 347.735.5480 •info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Special Board of Trustees Meeting 
Minutes 

Friday, September 7, 2018, 7:00 p.m. 

116 East 169th Street 

Bronx, New York 10463 

Trustees Present 

Benjamin Yalow. 

Via Skype: Miguel Balbuena – Chair, Ivan Lee – Co-Chair, Dr. Sandra Hayes – Vice Chair, Michael 

Rosen – Treasurer, Shirley Saunders – Secretary. 

Staff: Alec Diacou – Executive Director. 

Members of the Public: Dr. Ross T. Lyon. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Miguel Balbuena, Chairman, at 7:09 p.m.  A quorum was 

present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Board Approval Items 

Consent to Dispense with Section 4.6 of By-Laws 

Following a discussion of the necessity for calling a Special Board Meeting to name a new principal, 
upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of trustees unanimously approved the 
following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees dispenses with the 7-day prior notice provision 
for a Special Meeting of Section 4.6 of the By-Laws approved on September 6, 2014. 

Executive Session 

Executive Session was called to discuss contract negotiations with personnel. The executive director 
was authorized to offer employment letters on proscribed terms. 

Reelection of Ivan Lee and Ben Yalow to the Board of Trustees 

Following a review of Board member terms of service (Attachment A), upon a motion duly made 
and seconded, the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following resolution. 
Resolved: That the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees, elects Ivan Lee 
and Ben Yalow to its Board of Trustees, with terms expiring on August 31, 2021. 

Revision to Student and Family Handbook for the 2018-2019 School Year 

Following a review of the comments made by NYSED to Appendix F of the Charter Revision 
Request dated November 22, 2017, originally submitted on December 4, 2017, and subsequently 



 

 

  
 

   
  

  
 

 
              

 

 
 

  
 

  
 
 
 

   

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
  
 

 
           

 

Amended on March 26, 2018, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of 
trustees unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: the Board of Trustees approves the redlined copy of the 2016-2017 Student 
and Family Handbook, included as Attachment B, originally approved by NYSED on 
September 12, 2016. 

Election of Donna Demetri Friedman to the Board of Trustees 

Following a discussion about Ms. Friedman’s initial election to the board at the September 19, 2017 
and subsequent election at the July 17, 2018 board meeting, upon a motion duly made and seconded, 
the school’s board of directors unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees, having 
conducted a thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having 
discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to 
SED if found, has voted to select Donna Demetri Friedman as a final candidate to its 
Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on August 31, 2021, pending approval by 
SED, and authorizes the executive director to submit an amended New Board of 
Trustee Member Review application to NYSED for its approval. The resolution 
approving Donna Demetri Friedman is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Election of Lakiesha Howard to the Board of Trustees 

Ms. Lakiesha Howard, having been previously vetted by the full Board, was nominated to 
the Board. Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of directors 
unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees, having 
conducted a thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having 
discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to 
SED if found, has voted to select Lakiesha Howard as a final candidate to its Board 
of Trustees, with a term expiring on August 31, 2021, pending approval by SED, and 
authorizes the executive director to submit an amended New Board of Trustee 
Member Review application to NYSED for its approval. The resolution approving 
Lakiesha Howard is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Election of Dr. Ross T. Lyon to the Board of Trustees 

Having been previously vetted by a Board Member selection committee, Dr. Lyon was 
introduced to the Board. Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the school’s board of 
directors unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School Board of Trustees, having 
conducted a thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required and having 
discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided such history to 
SED if found, has voted to select Dr. Ross T. Lyon as a final candidate to its Board 
of Trustees, with a term expiring on August 31, 2020, pending approval by SED, and 
authorizes the executive director to submit an amended New Board of Trustee 
Member Review application to NYSED for its approval. The resolution approving Dr. 
Ross T. Lyon is formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 
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Principal and Chief Data Officer Appointments 

Ivan Lee reported on the principal search committee’s recommendations for principal of the school 
and Vice Principal/Chief Data Officer.  Discussion ensued, and Dr. Hayes expressed reservations. 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board adopted the following resolution: 

Resolved that the Board of Trustees hereby appoints Dr. Shannon Burton as Principal 
for the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School and Ms. Kim Smaw as Vice Principal/Chief 
Data Officer on the terms and for the salary as set forth in the information provided to 
the Board. 

The vote was 5-0, with one abstention. 

Modification of FY18-19 Board Meeting Calendar 

In recognition of the conflicting time for the religious holiday commencing September 18 and the 
previously scheduled September Board Meeting, upon motions duly made and seconded, the 
school’s board of trustees unanimously approved the following resolution. 

Resolved: That the Board of Trustees approves the Revised FY18-19 Board meeting 
schedule (Attachment C) providing for meetings on the third Tuesday of each month, 
at 6:30 p.m., in the School’s 169th Street campus, located at 116 E. 169th St, Bronx, 
NY., with the exception of the September Board Meeting, which is moved to 
Wednesday, September 26, 2018, to be held at Yalow’s Third Avenue campus, 
located at 3480 Third Avenue, Bronx, NY, 10456, commencing at 6:30 p.m. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:36 p.m.

  Submitted by 
Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by Board of Trustees on 
September 26, 2018 
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THE ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOL 

116 East 169th Street• Bronx, New York, 10452 
• Phone: 347.735.5480 •info@yalowcharter.org 

Web: www.yalowcharter.org 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
Minutes 

Tuesday, October 16, 2018, 6:30 p.m. 
116 E. 169th Street 
Bronx, NY 10463 

Trustees Present 

Miguel Balbuena—Chair, Sandra Hayes – Vice Chair, Gregoria Feliciano, Donna Friedman (by 

phone), Ivan Lee, Michael Rosen, Treasurer (via Skype), Benjamin Yalow, board candidates Dr. 

Ross Lyon and Lakiesha Howard 

Staff: Alec Diacou, executive director, Shannon Burton, principal, Kim Smaw, chief data officer 

Guests: Collin Raymond, CSBM, Anthony Largie, CSBM 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Miguel Balbuena, Chairman.  A quorum was 

present. 

Adoption of Agenda 

The agenda was adopted. 

Executive Session 

Executive Session was called to discuss the current state of the Board, financial challenges, and 
potential fundraising options. 

Mr. Balbuena informed the Board that one candidate fingerprinted and vetted through the Board 
approval process has been flagged by the NYSED for an area of concern and has been asked to 
undergo deeper a background check. Although Mr. Balbuena and Mr. Diacou looked in to the 
matter and found nothing severe, additional reports will be requested. Additional information, if any, 
will be shared with the Board. 

Due to the holiday season, Mr. Balbuena suggested scheduling the Board Retreat in January 2019. 
Saturday, January 12th appeared to work best for everyone. 

Mr. Balbuena reiterated that the school should vigilantly avoid an appearance of a conflict of interest 
as specified in Yalow’s Financial Policies and Procedures Manual (approved February 2015, 
including July 2015 Addendum). These documents are available for review on BoardOnTrack. 

Executive session concluded at 7:05 p.m. 

Board Approval Items 

Resolution: Approval of Minutes for September, 26, 2018 meeting 

Resolved: Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the minutes for the 

meeting held on September 26, 2018 were unanimously approved as amended. 



 

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

  

 
 
 

 
 

  
  

 
  

 

 
 

  
  

  
 

  

 

  

  

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

 

  

Committee Reports 

Finance Committee 

Collin Raymond from CSMB has been promoted and introduced his replacement Mr. Anthony 
Largie. 

On October 12, the finance committee met for a quarterly budget review to confirm the veracity of 
the underlying assumptions in the FY 2018-19 budget approved by the board in May 2018 and the 
ways significant deviations may affect the overall budget. 

Three significant deviations exist on the revenue side of the equation and one on the expense side: 
student enrollment is down significantly from the target enrollment of 456 students used to budget 
revenues—as of October 12, Yalow has 430 students. On September 4, 55 students (12.0%) never 
showed up for classes without officially withdrawing from Yalow, mostly in the 3rd and 4th grades, 
but also some new kindergarten students. (By comparison, in September 2017 Yalow had 36 
“phantom” students—9.6%.) 

Charters receive $15,307 per student. A loss of 26 students equates to a reduction of $397,982. At 
this point we are assuming a weighted-average student head count of 440 students (reduction of 
$245,000), although our goal remains achieving full enrollment of 456 students by November 30; we 
are actively recruiting kindergarteners. (The committee requested a parent survey to tease out 
possible reasons for parents withdrawing students from Yalow.) The board recommended 
installation of kindergarten recruitment banners at the Third Avenue campus. 

Federal grants will be over our budget by $118,700 due to unanticipated increases in Title I and Title 
IV grant funding for NYS schools. 

For the first time in three years Yalow has a full teaching and administrative staff. We are also hiring 
two non-budgeted positions—one additional teacher-social worker, beginning October 22, and an 
office secretary. Salary and benefit expenses for the fiscal year 2018-19 will be solid by October’s 
finance report, after we know which employees have elected to receive Yalow’s medical benefit 
packages. 

Total expenses are currently under budget by $309,088; net income currently forecast at $79k—$12k 
over our budgeted surplus of $67k; as of October 12, we have $3m in the bank and currently expect 
to end the 2018-19 fiscal year with approximately $2.7m in cash. Final student enrollment and 
special education classifications could reduce net income by c. $200k. 

Academics 

Ms. Smaw stated the school is in “good standing” with the State Education Department, although 
this classification isn’t not based on the test results, which haven’t been received. The state is looking 
at alternative data, such as attendance and parent/teacher survey’s. It’s important to note that 
Yalow’s classification could change yearly based on the ELA and Math proficiency scores. Typically, 
a school would have to have 3 consecutive years of high performing proficiency ratings to be a 
reward school. If this does not happen the school would become a priority and focus school. 

3rd-grade NYS math assessment data is broken down into 4 levels.  Levels 1 and 2 are for students 
who do not meet proficiency rating and levels 3 and 4 are for those who do.  49.2% of 3rd-grade 
students scored proficiently in math for 2017-2018. Yalow out performed CSD 9. Schools that 
perform better than their district and better than their state are schools that will always be in good 
standing. 



 

 

    
   

   

   
    

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
  

 

   
 

 
   

 

  

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

    

 
  

    

 

Similarly, English Language Art scores are also broken down into 4 levels. 51% of 3rd-grade students 
are proficient in ELA based on the 2018 NYS exam. Though a large portion scored very well, 49% 
of students did not, which raises a lot of concern. 

Dr. Burton asked the Board to take the data carefully, noting that Yalow’s 3rd-grade test results were 
essentially the same as those for public schools in NYC, generally.  This is due to several issues that 
are now being corrected, such as, gaps between administration and academic leadership, teacher 
instruction, listening to teacher concerns, the evaluation system, holding teachers accountable in 
addition to providing professional development for teachers. Dr. Burton also informed the Board 
that the new laws with the state’s Academic Interventions Services (AIS) states that students are 
actually one level below their reported assessment grades. 

On August 29th Miguel distributed to administration a response to each area of concern the state 
expressed in their mid-term review. Dr. Burton stated this document will continue to be updated 
and changed each month accordingly. Mr. Balbuena commended the school’s leadership on the 
progress that has made toward Yalow’s improvement plan. 

84 students from last year who had a chronic absentee rate (10+%)are consistently being monitored. 
Out of the 84 students, 35% a have 100% attendance rate, 30% have 1 absence, 19% with 2 
absences and 12% who are over 3.  Dr. Burton expressed some of these absences are due to major 
busing issues during the first week school. 

18 parents attended the 1st ESL class on Saturday, October 13th. The class was coordinated by Ms. 
Morales, Teacher-Parent Coordinator.  Ms. Morales expressed how excited the parents were. CPR 
will be the next training scheduled for parents. 

As noted previously, Dr. Burton stated each month a 5-question survey will be distributed to parents 
and teachers that will focus on operational approach, instruction approach, parent connection and 
safety of the school. Out of 45 teachers only 12 responded to the survey. The academic and 
operations leadership is looking into ways to get better participation. Ms. Morales suggested the 
Board meet with the teachers to discuss their concerns.  Dr. Lyon suggested holding a roundtable 
discussion. The parent survey results were good.  In particular 100% of parents strongly agreed they 
are greeted warmly when they visit or call the school. However, increased participation is necessary. 
In addition to other avenues, parents will be encouraged to complete the survey during teacher-
parent conferences. 

Operations 

A 4th kindergarten class had was added to Yalow believing in anticipation of high student attrition 
in 2018-19 based on historic data. 120 completed applications had been accepted but only about 105 
students showed up. In addition, 15 kindergarten students have now left the school following the 
busing debacles during the first two weeks of school. It’s been a trend for two years that parents 
have been removing their children in the upper grades. Currently there are 430 children actively 
enrolled. The waitlist of 200 children for kindergarten classes have been exhausted.  Ms. Smaw 
suggested attending Charter School Fairs to increase enrollment in addition to putting banners or 
outside tents stating that kindergarten seats are now available for immediate enrollment. 

The roof is still not fixed. Mr. Diacou met with the contractors and they still have some work to do 
to improve drainage. There are also other repairs that need to be done but the church is unwilling to 
pay for it. The new HVAC units will not be installed until December. 



 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 
 

  

   

 

 

   
 

        
         

Education Committee 

Mr. Balbuena asked Ms. Smaw to join the committee. 

Social Emotional Committee 

Donna Friedman will reach out to the committee members to set-up a meeting in November. 

Education Committee 

Mr. Balbuena stated the evaluation for Alec is available on BoardOnTrack. 

Other Business 

Mr. Diacou informed the Board the school will be hosting a Thanksgiving dinner at the school on 
Thanksgiving Day, November 22 at 11:00 a.m.  He invited any board members who are available to 
please join in serving food to the families. 

Mr. Balbuena asked the Board to reach out to their contacts asking for book donations. He would 
like to hold a holiday celebration on December 14th where books can be distributed to the children. 

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 

Submitted by Lakiesha Howard on behalf of 
Shirley Saunders, Secretary 
Approved by Board of Trustees 
November 20, 2018 
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The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

Minutes 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday November 20, 2018 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via
Skype from other location, which locations will also be open to the public. 

Objective
School Improvement Plan Review and Revisions. October Assessment Data Report. 

When leaders know how to lead great meetings, there's less time wasted and less frustration.
We have more energy to do the work that matters, realize our full potential, and do great things.
Justin Rosenstein 

Trustees Present 
B. Yalow, D. Friedman, G. Feliciano, I. Lee, L. Howard, M. Balbuena, M. Rosen (remote),
S. Hayes (remote) 

Trustees Absent 
S. Saunders 

Guests Present 
A. Diacou, S. Burton 

I. Opening Items 

A. Call the Meeting to Order
M. Balbuena called a meeting of the board of trustees of The Rosalyn Yalow
Charter School to order on Tuesday Nov 20, 2018 @ 6:30 PM at 116 E. 169th St.,
Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via Skype from other
location, which locations will also be open to the public.. 
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B. Record Attendance and Guests 
Kim Smaw, Vice principal and Guests: David Nussenbaum, Bronx Arts Ensemble,
Esther Sosa, teaching assistant, Eldwin Fernandez, operations manager, Kathya
Dunn-Moodie, parent, were also in attendance. 

M. Balbuena made a motion to adopt the Agenda.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

M. Balbuena made a motion to Go into Executive Session. 
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion.
Executive Session was called to discuss the board retreat and salary structure.
Discussed in Executive Session was the salary structure for new teachers and
seasoned teachers. Ms. Shirley Saunders, effective January 15, 2019 will resign
from the Board due to personal matters. The Board retreat has been confirmed

M. Balbuena made a motion to leave Executive Session. 
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

A. Approve Minutes October 16, 2018 Board Meeting
M. Balbuena made a motion to approve minutes for the meeting held on October

B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
unanimously to approve the motion. 

B. Nomination of Lakiesha Howard to be Secretary of the Board.
M. Balbuena made a motion to elect Lakiesha Howard as Secretary of the Board.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

C. To rescind 6/18/2018 resolution authorizing the election of co-chair as an additional

M. Balbuena made a motion to rescind the June 19, 2018 resolution to revise 
Section 6.1 (b) of the ByLaws, approved September 4, 2014.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

D. Expansion of Board members.
S. Hayes made a motion to amend Section 3.2 to read, “Number. The number of
Trustees on the Board of Trustees shall be not less than seven and not more than 
fifteen or such other maximum as may be determined from time to time by
amendment of these Bylaws. The term “Entire Board” wherever used in these
Bylaws means the total number of Trustees, between seven and fifteen, elected 
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A quorum was present. 

C. Adoption of Agenda

The board VOTED 

D. Executive Session 

The board VOTED 

for January 12, 2019. 

E. End Executive Session 

The board VOTED 

II. Board Approval Minutes 

16, 2018. 

The board VOTED 

The board VOTED 

Board Officer 

The board VOTED 



as of the most recently held election of Trustees, including Trustees previously
elected whose terms have not yet expired.” Revision of § 3.2 of the Bylaws
simplifies Board management. The amendment allows the Board to expand or
reduce the number of Trustees constituting the “Entire Board” without the
necessity of a Bylaw amendment so long as the number of trustees remains
between seven and fifteen and the Board notifies the Authorizer of any change
and seeks Authorizer approval for newly appointed trustees.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

E. Charter Revision Request amending Bylaws to reflect new reporting of school

S. Hayes made a motion to amend the Rosalyn Yalow Charter School By-laws
dated September 6, 2014, subject to NYSED’s final approval, and authorizes the
Executive Director to incorporate feedback from NYSED. The Charter Revision
Request amends the school Bylaws to reflect new reporting of school leadership
to the Board of Trustees. A redlined copy of the proposed Bylaw revision is

B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
unanimously to approve the motion. 

A. Bronx Arts Ensemble (BAE)
Mr. David Nussenbaum, executive director of BAE—Yalow’s arts partner—
provided an in-depth presentation of BAE’s arts in education programming BAE
has 46 years of experience providing live classical music to diverse communities
in the Bronx, plus many styles of music unique to the diverse heritage of Bronx
residents. BAE is partnering with Columbia Teachers College to immerse BAE’s
teaching artists with 21st century teaching skills.
Yalow’s arts collaboration with BAE includes violin (grades 3 and 4), chorus
(grades k-4), and visual arts (grades k-4). The current arts schedule and
objectives were provided to the board (Attachment B). On December 9, BAE has
arranged for Yalow’s chorus to perform with the Bronx Opera Company at Bronx

Since the start of the new school, Principal Burton stated all of Yalow’s 48
teachers, teaching fellows, and coaches are being given 3 walk-through
observations each year by various administrators. Formal teacher observations
will take place in December. Mr. Burton stated he and Ms. Evans took part in a
Harvard teacher recruitment fair in Cambridge and have two potential candidates
to teach 4th and 5th grade science classes next year.
Professional development for teachers continues in CKLA, meeting with 3rd and
4th grade teachers. More technology is being added to the class rooms to help
prepare for state exams. Principal Burton provided an update on scheduled
student assessments and grade-by-grade completion rates as compared to

Fencing and chess instructors are submitting report card grades for the first time,
providing parents an opportunity to see student performance in noncore
electives. The goal is to add arts grades to the report card, as well.
As of November 9, Yalow’s chronic absentee rate was 13.9% (61 students); 8.4%
at the main campus; 31.4% at the new kindergarten campus.
Attendance for 83% of last year’s chronic absentees is better, with 90% or higher
attendance rate this school year. Roughly 4 or five students per grade are being 
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The board VOTED 

leadership to Board

marked Attachment A. 

The board VOTED 

III. Presentation 

Community College. 

B. Principal Report

schedule. 



monitored so they don’t hit the 10% chronic absentee rate. Consistent follow-up
is being made to understand the issues. Saturday bi-lingual ESL classes resume
following the Thanksgiving holiday. CPR training for parents was also held last
Wednesday. Saturday programs for children who need extra support will

Currently 77% of teachers have a graduate degree. By the end of the school year
91% will have a graduate degree. Mr. Diacou noted the school continues to
exceed the allowable number of uncertified teachers—primarily due to Yalow’s
11 teacher-social workers, only two of whom are certified as both teachers and
LMSWs. Under the charter school law, we are only permitted 10 exemptions from
NYS teaching certification. Most uncertified teacher-social workers are currently
enrolled in graduate school education programs; remainder have been asked to
enroll in RELAY GSE in summer 2019. 
Teachers completed an attendance policy survey. Currently teachers are given
10 PTO days a year. Should teachers be paid at the end of year for unused PTO
days and do they roll over to following year by December? Principal Burton asked
that the Board considering allowing teachers to rollover unused days to the
following year. This item will be tabled for the next agenda.
Principal Burton discussed the evaluation tool now put into place for teaching
assistants. The goal is also to have an evaluation tool for Yalow academic

Review of NYC’s 2017-18 School Quality Snapshot was tabled to the December

Vice Principal/Chief Data Officer Kim Smaw presented a PowerPoint overview of
school-wide academic performance (STEP Literacy, NWEA, CKLA, and Singapore
math), noting that 4th graders continue to excel in Math (Attachment C). All
students new to Yalow have been assessed; 100% of them are reading below
grade level. Lots of resources need to be focused in literacy to support the

A decision will have to be made very soon if Yalow is going to become a middle
school or not. Mr. Diacou stated the Board will make a decision in June when the 

To scaffold Yalow’s goal of improving school-wide literacy, Dr. Lyon asked the
Education Committee to consider incorporating phonics, word recognition and
definitions into activities such as art, science, physical education, chess, fencing,

D. Executive Director's Report 

• Contractors are trying to finish the work on the roof before Christmas.
• Thanksgiving Day dinner will be served to families at the school, starting at

• Fundraised about $2,500 for Thanksgiving dinner for families.
• Large banners have been placed at the third avenue site advertising for
kindergarten student enrollment in 2018-19.

• Exploring the possibility of adding a small 1st-grade class at the main site,
contingent on securing parent commitments from at least 12 parents of
students on the waiting list.

• Opened 12:1:1 special education class at the kindergarten campus, currently
with 5 students, 2 co-teachers and a teaching assistant. 
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continue. 

administrators. 

18 board meeting. 

C. Data Dive 

children and teachers. 

charter renewal is due. 

and games at recess. 

10:30 a.m. 

IV. Committee Reports 



A written 4-month year-to-date finance report was submitted to Board members
in advance of the meeting. Although student enrollment is down from the target
enrollment of 456 students (currently 443), FY 2017-18 year-end net income is
currently forecast at $183,521—$115k over our budgeted surplus of $67k. 17 of
Yalow’s kindergarten students withdrew from Yalow following the yellow bus
debacles in September, after school was opened, while 20 4th graders never
returned to Yalow. Kindergarten enrollment is slowly climbing.

Mr. Balbuena is reviewing the updated academic improvement plan. Once the
document has been finalized it will be uploaded to BoardOnTrack and submitted

Social Emotional Committee 
All committee members must be informed about meetings and to receive follow-

A. Additional topics which may be discussed or acted upon
Mr. Balbuena is scheduling a meeting in January to explore fundraising
opportunities with a potential donor. He also stated he would like the Board to
focus on holding a gala to help with the new facility.
Mr. Diacou introduced Anthony Thai, a portfolio manager for the Cornell
University Endowment fund, who has been volunteering on Saturday mornings
for the last 3 years to assist with coaching Yalow’s chess team. Mr. Thai raised

• Parents are concerned with the progress of students
• Parents want better communication from school. In addition, parents need to
be more involved in their children’s education. 

• A better system must be put in place to handle children commuting home
during bad weather conditions, such as the unexpected November 15 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:26 PM. 

Submitted by Lakiesha Howard,
On behalf of Shirley Saunders, Secretary
Approved by Board of Trustees on
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A. Committee Reports
Finance Committee 

Education Committee 

to NYSED. 

up notes. 

V. New Business 

$6,000 for the chess team. 

VI. Public Comment 

A. Public Comment 

snowstorm. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting

Respectfully Submitted,
L. Howard 

January 15, 2019 



The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Minutes 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday December 18, 2018 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via
Skype from other location, which locations will also be open to the public. 

Mission Statement 
The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School will eliminate the learning achievement gap for
economically disadvantaged urban children—including special needs students and
English language learners—by using engaging and demanding education; a team
teaching model, linking an experienced teacher with a licensed social worker in grades
K-2 and with a teaching fellow in later grades; rich extracurricular activities (fencing,
arts, chess) to educate the whole child; and family support counseling—all in order to
graduate our students at or above grade level in literacy and math.

Vision 
Yalow’s goal: Developing the whole child, encouraging each young student to excel. 

Objective
To provide Board of Trustees oversight of educational and operational outcomes. 

Trustees Present 
B. Yalow, D. Friedman (remote), G. Feliciano, I. Lee (remote), M. Balbuena, M. Rosen
(remote), S. Hayes 

Trustees Absent 
L. Howard, R. Lyon, S. Saunders 

Guests Present 
A. Diacou, Kim Smaw, S. Burton 
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I. Opening Items 

A. Call the Meeting to Order
M. Balbuena called a meeting of the board of trustees of The Rosalyn Yalow
Charter School to order on Tuesday Dec 18, 2018 @ 6:40 PM at 116 E. 169th St.,
Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via Skype from other
location, which locations will also be open to the public..
Guests: Eldwin Fernandez, operations manager, Lluvia Lara, parent, Joshua
McKenzie, operations assistant, Emuejevoke Ofuyah, teacher,Esther Sosa,
teaching assistant, Jeffrey Sosa, parent. 

B. Record Attendance and Guests 

C. Adoption of Agenda
M. Balbuena made a motion to move the Executive Session to the end of the 
meeting to accommodate several unannounced parents, adopt the amended
Agenda.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED to approve the motion. 

D. Approve Minutes
Approval of the minutes was tabled until January 15, 2019 meeting. 

II. Committee Reports 

A. Social-Emotional Program and Development
Dr. Donna Friedman gave a report of the Committee's November 5, 2019
meeting in which they discussed specific goals and objectives of placing social
workers in k-2 classroom. The goal is to ensure that all children at Yalow are
ready to learn and if not, to provide them with the support and tools to do so.A
draft plan outlining best practices for social workers as co-teachers in Yalow's k-2
classrooms had previously been written by Mosaic Mental Health and is hereby
submitted for board review. Part of the plan is to incorporate social-emotional
content in academic lesson planning for k-2 students. 

If approved, baseline assessments to assess each child’s readiness for learning
and identify social-emotional barriers to learning readiness will made by co-
teachers in the beginning of the school year and quarterly, thereafter. The board
committee will be expanded to include two of Yalow's social workers. 

B. Finance 
The 5-month finance report (ending November 30) was previously submitted to
the board for review. Current forecast shows an increase in year-end surplus by
$169k, to $236,160. Enrollment has increased to 448 students. 
The finance committee will undertake a deep budget-dive on January 10 in
preparation for the January 15, 2019 board meeting. 

C. Personnel 

D. Education 
Dr. Hayes reported that the the Education Committee met on December 6 for its
monthly review of academic goals. A charter revision request to amend Yalow's
Bylaws, whereby the principal will report directly to the Board of Trustees was 
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submitted on December 15, and is included in the December 2018 document 
folder. 

III. Academic Reports 

A. Review of Academic Assessments 
Kim Smaw, Vice Principal/Chief Data officer, reviewed the Grade-by-grade
student assessment tables included in the December 2018 board meeting folder.
The Board discussed several initiatives address the high percentage of students
reading below grade level, particularly in the second and third grades. Ms. Smaw
was appointed to be in charge of mentoring new teachers. Dr. Burton will conduct
a survey of 2nd- and 3rd- grade teachers, asking for their comments about how
to improve those percentages. 

B. Progress Toward NYSED Annual Report Goals
Review of progress toward the Annual Report charter goals submitted to NYSED
is tabled to the January Board meeting. 

C. NYC 2017-18 School Quality Snapshot
Principal Burton reviewed NYC DOE's online report card for Yalow. 

D. Chronic Absentee Report
Chronic absenteeism is 21.07% (94 students); Main Site:16.57%; and Third 
Avenue 35.19% (kindergarten campus), where families are transitioning from
pre-school attendance habits to elementary school expectations. Principal Burton
offered to visit homes of chronic absentees on Sundays to meet with parents. 

E. School Library
$14,000 has been allocated for school library books at both the main campus and
Third Avenue campus. A library committee consisting of Kim Smaw, Ben Thomas,
and Yvonne Booker-Byers was appointed to select additional library books and
oversee distribution and checkout of books. 

IV. Executive Director Report 

A. HVAC Installation December 26-29 
Removal and replacement of 5 rooftop HVAC units will take place December
26-28, 2018. 

B. Enrollment (448 v. 456)
Yalow will not be opening a new 1st-grade class mentioned at the November
Board meeting. Current enrollment is 448 students; target enrollment remains
456 students. We continue to actively recruit new students for kindergarten
where 17 students withdrew due to the September bus crisis. Student attrition
continues in 3rd and 4th grades. 

C. New School Search for 2021 
Yalow's options for securing a new building are contingent upon Yalow's ability
to convince lenders that Yalow is a solid credit risk for a $30-$40 million 
investment. Mr. Diacou toured the Bronx Post Office development site. Developer
wants July 2020 occupancy; Yalow's 2 leases expire in 2021. Developer will
consider Yalow's probability of receiving a 5-year charter renewal from NYSED. 
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Mr. Diacou reminded the board that academic viability influences probability of
receiving a 1-, 3-, or 5-year charter renewal. 

Dr. hayes stressed the necessity of exploring multiple facility options for a new
school facility beginning July 1, 2022. 

D. Board Retreat Saturday, January 12, 2019
BoardOnTrack will facilitate Board governance discussions. 

V. Public Comment 

A. Public Coment 
Three parents and one Yalow teacher attended. They expressed interest in
coming to future board meetings and asked how speaking privileges could be
arranged. Unfortunately, one of them waited in the lobby from 6:00 p.m. until
around 7:30 before finding out which floor the meeting was being held. Better
channels of communication were discussed...the discussion was primarily in
Spanish, because one of the parents didn't speak English. Future board
meetings notice will be posted in Spanish and English. One of the parents
suggested that only 40% of parents in have internet access. Mr. Diacou will
review student files and report to the Board how many parents do not have email
addresses. 

Board members signed holiday greeting cards to accompany holiday presents for
teachers. 

VI. New Business 

A. Additional topics which may be discussed or acted upon
None. 

VII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:06 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted,
A. Diacou 
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The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
Minutes 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday January 15, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

Location 
116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via
Skype from other location, which locations will also be open to the public. 

Mission Statement 
The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School will eliminate the learning achievement gap for
economically disadvantaged urban children—including special needs students and
English language learners—by using engaging and demanding education; a team
teaching model, linking an experienced teacher with a licensed social worker in grades
K-2 and with a teaching fellow in later grades; rich extracurricular activities (fencing,
arts, chess) to educate the whole child; and family support counseling—all in order to
graduate our students at or above grade level in literacy and math.

Vision 
Yalow’s goal: Developing the whole child, encouraging each young student to excel. 

Objective
To provide Board of Trustees oversight of educational and operational outcomes. 

Trustees Present 
B. Yalow, I. Lee, L. Howard, M. Balbuena, M. Rosen, R. Lyon, S. Hayes 

Trustees Absent 
G. Feliciano 

Guests Present 
A. Diacou, Carlos Luna and Myriam Gonzalez, Esther Sosa, Kathya M Dunn-Moodie, Kim
Smaw, Lauren Farline, Lluvia Lara, S. Burton 
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I. Opening Items 

A. Call the Meeting to Order
M. Balbuena called a meeting of the board of trustees of The Rosalyn Yalow
Charter School to order on Tuesday Jan 15, 2019 @ 6:30 PM at 116 E. 169th St.,
Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via Skype from other
location, which locations will also be open to the public.. 

B. Record Attendance and Guests 

C. Adoption of Agenda
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, the adoption of the January 15, 2019
agenda was unanimously approved. 

D. Approve Minutes from November 20, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting
M. Balbuena made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees
Meeting on 11-20-18, as amended. Dr. Lyon asked that the November minutes be
amended to state the correct year of Ms. Saunders resignation to reflect January
2019 instead of January 2018 and that his discussion surrounding achieving
literacy goals be added.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

E. Approve Minutes from December 18, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting
M. Balbuena made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees
Meeting on 12-18-18, as amended. Dr. Lyon asked that the December minutes
reflect his absence from the meeting.
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED unanimously to approve the motion. 

II. Executive Session 

A. Enter Executive Session 
Upon a motion duly made and seconded, Board nominated Ms. Gregoria Feliciano
to chair the Parent Engagement Committee. Ms. Hayes suggested that parents
select a parent to work alongside Ms. Feliciano. 

Mr. Balbuena asked board members to help identify potential new board
members. Dr. Lyon stated the retreat was excellent and some of the tools we
learned will help identify appropriate board members. Someone with a human
resources background would be very valuable. 

B. End Executive Session 

III. Committee Reports 

A. Social-Emotional Program and Development
The next Social Emotional Development Committee meeting will take place on
Thursday, January 17th. Mr. Balbuena welcomed other members to join if
interested. 
The Social-Emotional Program committee will meet on Thursday, January 17,
2019 to finalize recommendations for implementing a new social-emotional
curriculum in Yalow's 4 kindergarten classrooms and review the role of teacher-
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social workers in the Yalow's 10 K-2 and one 12:1:1 classroom. Committee 
recommendations will be presented at the February 19, 2019 board meeting. 

B. Finance 
Year-end financial forecasts remain on a positive trend. 

The finance committee conducted its quarterly deep budget dive January 10,
2019. Student enrollment is now 448, compared with a forecast of 440 students
for revenue projections. Fundraising is below target; year-end revenue from
fundraising is forecast to be $56K under budget. The current net income is
$573,390 which is $321,701 ahead of budget for the period. 

CSBM has not been performing as strongly as they have in the past. Mr. Rosen
stated he is not sure if this is due to the change in personnel with the absence of
Mr. Ramon but would like to give them an opportunity to improve. Mr. Yalow
stated right before the January 15th Board meeting they received a new proposal
that did not reflect the fee. Mr. Balbuena asked that a follow-up be discussed in
Execution Session at the next Board Meeting in addition to funding for the new 
building. 

C. Personnel 
The personnel committee is in the process of finalizing the evaluation for the
Executive Director. Mr. Balbuena stated that all Board members should have 
received an email from Board on Track to review the Executive Director 
evaluation. He asked that if necessary, for all to provide feedback via the link
provided. The Board will be meeting with the Executive Director to discuss the
goals and also the role between the Principal and Chief Data Analyst. The Board
will also review the principal's leadership goals in addition to the roll-over of
vacation and sick leave. 

Mr. Balbuena asked that Mr. Diacou and Mr. Burton provide certification
documentation for all teachers for the committee to review. Mr. Balbuena asked 
that each committee set at least two goals for the next six months. He would like
the goals to be uploaded to Board on Track so we can see the progress. 

D. Education 
The Education Committee met on January 10 for its monthly review of academic
goals. Topics of discussion were
Chronic Absenteeism, Attendance Improvement Plan, Mid-Year Teacher
Observation Report, Response to Intervention (RTI) Update and STEP Literacy and
Math Data Update. Mr. Yalow stated a month by month report of those children in
the red for absenteeism would be very useful. This request will be forwarded to
Dr. Burton. 

IV. Academic Reports 

A. Progress Toward NYSED Annual Report Goals
Each year the school must report to the state what the schools goals are. One
goal is to increase the academic success of the third and fourth graders. The goal
is for 75% of the third and fourth graders to achieve proficiency on the state
exams as last year only 50% achieved proficiency. Students are able to access
the IO diagnostic exam where they can go online take sample examinations.
Saturday programs will be in effect starting in January to help students with
reading, writing and mathematics. For those students under the RTI umbrella a
group of teachers have been assigned to give them extra support. Given this 
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additional support Dr. Burton believes the students will surpass last year’s
results. 

Mr. Balbuena stated the Board has been asking for a longitude study of the
students for sometime and asked that S. Burton and K. Smaw complete this
project. Ms. Smaw sated she has STEP data she can compile this study from the
the math data will be difficult as it phases out. 

In addition, S. Burton and K. Smaw were requested to track individual student
progress on a monthly basis and report results to the education committee. 

V. Executive Director Report 

A. HVAC Installation Completed
The five HVAC units have been installed and tested. Minor issues are being
worked out. The main issue is the airflow through the building which was not part
of the original contract. This means a new contract must be made and the school 
will have to incur the expense. As soon as the weather permits final roof repairs
will be completed. 

B. Enrollment (448 v. 456)
Enrollment is at 450. Currently there are 200 applications for next year primarily
for kindergarten. The goal is to fully enroll 536 students in Yalow's 5th year,
requiring enrollment of 3 new kindergarten classes in FY19-20. 

C. New School Search for 2021 
Mr. Diacou stated he has been approached by several developers for a new
school facility. All future building options are inversely correlated with Yalow's
probability of receiving a 5-year charter renewal from NYSED. Yalow's academic
viability influences probability of receiving a 1-, 3-, or 5-year charter
renewal. One plan is to go back to Civic Builders once academics have improved.
Another option is the Bronx Post Office; owners want to lease the space
beginning in 2020, which would mean sub-leasing both of Yalow's current
facilities. Mr. Diacou has a meeting scheduled with another developer next
week. 

Mr. Balbuena asked that the fund raiser developer position be put back into the
budget as essential to Yalow's ability to fund a $30-$40 million building. 

VI. New Business 

A. What does it mean to be a community school?
The Board discussed the elements of the school that are valuable and unique: 

1. teacher-social worker model 
2. intellectually enriched curriculum, includingSingapore math and the
American Museum of Natural History

3. parent engagement
4. outpacing CSD9 academically (albeit, below our internal standards)
5. providing student with multiple avenues to be successful, including chess,
fencing, arts and chorus programs and development of extra curriculum
skills that teach discipline

6. weekly family support groups
7. Mosaic Mental Health satellite clinic 
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The intent is to look at the Community Schools model and see what Yalow can
incorporate and leverage to support parents. 

VII. Public Comment 

A. Public Comment 
Items discussed were: 

1. More parent involvement
2. Better Communication 
3. Preparation for NYS ELA and math exams
4. Yalow should become a K-8 school 

Mr. Balbuena asked that all concerns be submitted in writing for an official
response but would like the parents to know that the Board understands the
importance of education, and is working on improving all of the above. 

VIII. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made,
seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:06 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted,
L. Howard 
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The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

Minutes 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

Date and Time 
Tuesday June 25, 2019 at 5:30 PM 

Location 
116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY 10452. Certain members of the board may attend via GoToMeeting or 
Skype from other locations, which locations will also be open to the public. 

Mission Statement 
The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School will eliminate the learning achievement gap for economically 
disadvantaged urban children—including special needs students and English language learners— 
by using engaging and demanding education; a team teaching model, linking an experienced 
teacher with a licensed social worker in grades K-2 and with a teaching fellow in later grades; rich 
extracurricular activities (fencing, arts, chess) to educate the whole child; and family support 
counseling—all in order to graduate our students at or above grade level in literacy and math. 

Vision 
Yalow’s goal: Developing the whole child, encouraging each young student to excel. 

Trustees Present 
B. Yalow, G. Feliciano, I. Lee, L. Howard, M. Balbuena, M. Rosen, R. Lyon (remote), S. Hayes 
(remote) 

Trustees Absent 
None 

Guests Present 
A. Diacou, S. Burton 

I. Opening Items 

A. Record Attendance and Guests 
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M. Balbuena called a meeting of the board of trustees of The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 
to order on Tuesday Jun 25, 2019 @ 5:31 PM at 116 E. 169th St., Bronx, NY 10452. Certain 
members of the board may attend via GoToMeeting or Skype from other locations, which 
locations will also be open to the public.. 

M. Balbuena made a motion to approve minutes from the Board of Trustees Meeting on 

unanimously to approve the motion. 

Year-end financial forecasts remain on a positive trend. Student enrollment remains at 444. 
Revenue forecasts use Yalow’s student count of 442 students. Fundraising is $66K 
under budget, excluding in-kind contributions. Total revenues are forecast to be over budget 

Major deviations in spending include lower forecast expenses in administrative and 
instructional staff due to lower salaries and hiring after the beginning of the July 1 fiscal year; 
fewer than projected enrollments for Yalow’s health (70%) and 401(k) benefit plans; lower 
expenses for legal, student testing, tuition reimbursement to social workers for NYS teaching 
certification programs, building repairs and maintenance, textbooks and classroom supplies. 
Textbook and classroom supply expenses offset by using FAMIS monies for purchases and 
furniture donations from private schools. Higher than forecast expenditures have been 
incurred for additional art and music classes, monthly technology maintenance for several 
additional classrooms and staff at the Third Avenue campus, and CSBM services. Total 
expenses are currently forecast to be under budget by $408,333. 

E. Review 5-year budget for charter renewal 
The draft 5-year budget covers FY2020-21 through FY2024-25—years 6-10. While Yalow's 
cash balances are quite strong, the number of enrolled students permitted under Yalow's 
charter will be capped at 536 in year 5. Without nominal year-to-year increases in per pupil 
funding from NYS, long-term stability is a concern. The budget also assumes Yalow's two 
campuses are consolidated into a single new building beginning in year 8. 

Mr. Yalow stated the Finance Committed made a number of hard decisions to demonstrate 
that the school will be financially viable over the next 5 years and net income remains 
positive, including a review of staffing levels. There is opportunity for adjustments on the 
administrative staff, but not enough to close the revenue gaps. In light of the unfavorable 
view of charter schools in the NYS assembly, the budget assumes a minimal annual 2% 
increase in per pupil revenue from the state. Without additional fund raising revenue, 
beginning in FY2020-2021, a minimum number of cuts, such as COLA for 16 administrative 
staff positions and teacher bonuses, may need to be eliminated in order to maintain positive 

B. Yalow made a motion to approve 5-year budget for charter renewal. 
M. Rosen seconded the motion. 

to approve the motion. 

F. Employee Health Benefit Renewal Policy 
The annual policy premium for the most popular non-gated plan (26 employees) increases 

. The gated plan (16 employees) decreases by 1.0%, and the plan with Oxford's 
largest network of specialists (11 employees) increases by 4.45%. Below is the amount the 
school currently pays towards health care: 
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B. Call the Meeting to Order 

C. Approve Minutes 

05-21-19. 
R. Lyon seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED 

D. Finance Report 

$76,686. 

net income. 

The board VOTED 

by 0.6%



$917.89 (64%) 
$780.20 (64%) 

Based on our payroll census, costs to Yalow would be: $688K—a 28% increase—assuming 
that an additional 3 of 15 unenrolled employees choose to to enroll in coverage along with 8 

B. Yalow made a motion to renew the Employee Health Benefit Policy. 
G. Feliciano seconded the motion. 

to approve the motion. 

G. Proposed Revisions to Yalow's Corporate By-Laws 
R. Lyon made a motion to adopt the newly proposed DRAFT By-Laws that permits a flexible 
number of trustees (between 7 and 15), and thereby a flexible number of trustees required to 

to approve the motion. 

H. Reduce school hours by 30 minutes 
B. Yalow made a motion to Resolved: That the Board of Trustees approves shortening the 
length of the school day from 8:00 a.m.–4:30 p.m. at the 169th Street campus and from 7:30 
a.m.–4:00 p.m. at the Third Avenue campus. The Charter Revision Request is attached as 

G. Feliciano seconded the motion. 
to approve the motion. 

The Board reminded school administration that in approving the new school calendar start 
date of August 26, prior to the availability of Yellow bus service, NYSED requested the 
school to put in place a metro card contingency plan for parents who require public 
transportation assistance traveling to and from school. 

I. Board Meeting Schedule FY2019-2020 
B. Yalow made a motion to to continue holding the Board meetings every third Tuesday of 

to approve the motion. 

3 students (3%) grew more that 4 steps, exceeding expected progress 
19 students (17%) grew exactly 4 steps, meeting expected progress 
91 students (81%) grew less than 4, trailing expected progress 

12 students (13%) grew more than 3 steps, exceeding expected progress 
21 students (23%) grew exactly 3 steps, meeting expected progress 
57 students (63%) grew less than 3 steps, trailing expected progress 
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Monthly Tier Premium Share 
Employee: $659.73 (92%) 
Employee & Spouse: 
Employee & Children: 
Family: $1,021.87 (50%) 

of 10 new hires. 

The board VOTED 

form a majority. . 
B. Yalow seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED 

Exhibit A. 

The board VOTED 

each month (Exhibit B). 
I. Lee seconded the motion. 
The board VOTED 

II. Principal Report 

A. Instruction Update 
STEP Data Results 

Kindergarten Student Progress 

1st grade Student Progress 

2nd grade Student Progress 



36 students (40%) grew more than 3 steps, exceeding expected progress 
14 students (16%) grew exactly 3 steps, meeting expected progress 
40 students (44%) grew less than 3 steps, trailing expected process 

19 students (19%) grew more than 3 steps, exceeding expected progress 
11 students (11%) grew exactly 3 steps, meeting expected progress 
70 students (70%) grew less than 3 steps trailing expected progress 

About 80 students will be attending summer academy. Half of which will be doing project 
based assignments to increase performance in NWEA and STEP. 

C. Embargoed 2017-2018 School Quality Survey 

• 11 Teacher Social Workers Needed; Hired 9 
• 23 Teachers & Fellows Needed; Hired 21 
• 4 RTI ELL Needed; Hired 4 
• 5 RTI Sped Needed; Hired 5 
• 1 RTI Reading Specialist Needed; Hired 1 (3 Additional Needed for 2019-2020) 
• 3 RTI Other Needed; Hired 3 (Teaching Fellows used as teachers) 

E. Year-end teacher evaluations 
Dr. Burton has conducted meetings with every teacher who has signed and have been given 

F. NYS test results (preliminary) 
Dr. Burton stated students outperformed last year results and outperformed NYC scores. 

98% of 4th graders earned a 3 or 4 on state science scores. 

Dr. Burton continues to meeting with Mr. Balbuena in preparation for the renewal with the 

Mr. Lee requested to see a copy of the new physical education curriculum when finalized. 

H. Chronic Absenteeism September 4, 2018-June 7, 2019 
On par with FY2017-2018. Refer to attached graphs. 

• Chronic absentees (>10%): 17.11% (76 students with 7 to 40 days) 
• 10+ days late-arrival/early-dismissals: 33.78%. (150 students; 56 students with more 
than 30 days late; 15 students have more than 20 early-dismissals.) 

A. Father's Day celebration Friday, June 14, 2019 
Donuts With Dad Father's Day celebration on Friday, June 

14, following school dismissal. Parent coordinator Carolina Morales organized a very 

4 of 5Powered by BoardOnTrack

The Rosalyn Yalow Charter School - Board of Trustees Meeting - Minutes - Tuesday June 25, 2019 at 5:30 PM

3rd grade Student Progress 

B. Summer Academy 

D. Teacher hire update 

a copy of their evaluation. 

G. School performance plan 

State. 

III. Parent Engagement 

Some 40 families attended the 

successful event. 



Short-term goal is extending existing leases at both Third Avenue and 169th St. Walker 
Memorial and Third Avenue Realty are open to discussion. 

Long-term goal is consolidating two campuses in one new building, approx. 50,000 s.ft. for a 
K-5 school. Map of Yalow's student population overlaid with Bronx school districts is 

1. Developer builds a mixed use residential/commercial building and provides Yalow with 

1. Third Avenue Realty is sourcing two developments with Yalow in mind. 
2. Yalow uses public/private market to finance a $35 million building. 

1. Ziegler Investment Banking says there is great demand among investors for NY 

2. Ziegler analysis places Yalow at BB+; possibly BBB-. BB is non investment grade, 
but sufficient to sell bonds. Ziegler credit analysis attached. 

3. Financing is dependent on obtaining a 3-year charter renewal. 
4. Moody's Investors Service is analyzing Yalow's credit and will visit school on July 

The bonus discussion was tabled to the July Board meeting. 

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded 
and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:16 PM. 
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IV. Executive Director Report 

A. New school facility search 

attached. 

New construction options: 

ground floor space. 

tax-exempt bonds 

8. 

V. Executive Session 

A. Bonuses 

VI. Closing Items 

A. Adjourn Meeting 

Respectfully Submitted, 
L. Howard 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/29/2019 • Last updated: 08/01/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

ROSALYN YALOW CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 
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Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 
s 

Student 
s with 
Disabilit 
ies 

To recruit Economically Disadvantaged
students, Rosalyn Yalow Charter School
focused its recruitment strategies on high
needs neighborhoods in the Bronx. The
specific strategy included a combination of
in person outreach, community advertising
and media, individual organizational appeals
and information sessions and events. At the 
end of 2018 19, 94.5% of students qualified
for free and reduced price lunch, our primary
indicator of Economically Disadvantaged 
status. 

To specifically recruit English Language
Learners, Yalow made posters, brochures and
applications available in Spanish. In addition,
Yalow published advertisements in Spanish
newspapers such as El Diario. The Executive
Director and staff also canvassed 
neighborhoods with large non English
speaking populations to inform families
about the school and support their efforts to
enroll. Moreover, during information
sessions, Yalow provided translation services
in Spanish. In many cases, families opted to
translate for each other to ensure their 
community members had an optimal
understanding of the school’s program. In
2018 19, 24% of the school's students were
English Language Learners. 

To specifically recruit students with
disabilities, Yalow staff conducted Parent 
Workshops at Head Start programs in CSD
9and CSD 7, including several with high
concentrations of Special Education
students. During all outreach efforts, Yalow
staff shared details of the school’s program
for serving students with disabilities and
integrating them fully into the school. We
have also redoubled efforts with the CSE to 
review student referrals for IEPs in the time 
period required under federal law. Of our
total student population in 2018 19, 16.2%
were Students with Disabilities. 

To continue our solid efforts to recruit 
Economically Disadvantaged students in the
2019 20 school year, Rosalyn Yalow Charter
School will further target advertising and
outreach to specific communities in the
Bronx. The school will also offer at least 25 
information sessions throughout the school
community. In addition, the school will
continue providing targeted support for
families in completing and returning the
lunch forms. 

Although we do not anticipate making any
substantial changes to our efforts to recruit
English Language Learners, we will continue
to encourage our current non English families
to share information about the school and 
the myriad of services we provide for ELL
students and their families. 

Our efforts to recruit Students with 
Disabilities in 2019 20 will be similar to our 
efforts this past year. Now that we can
demonstrate success in working with
Students with Disabilities, we will add this 
information to our printed materials, website,
and presentations. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 
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Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

Econom 
ically
Disadva 
ntaged 

English
Langua 
ge
Learner 
s/Multili
ngual
Learner 
s 

RYCS strives to retain Economically
Disadvantaged students by maintaining an
inclusive environment in which all students 
are fully able to participate in school
programs and extracurriculars regardless of
their family's ability to pay. Uniforms and
supplies are provided for all families who
cannot afford the expense, and no students
are charged for activities, field trips and
special programs. 

To retain ELL students, Yalow runs a full 
inclusion program with ELLs receiving
language acquisition services within the
general education classroom. The school
uses the Core Knowledge Language Arts
program for grades K 3, which integrates
phonics with story time and small group
tutoring to create a balanced literacy
program. We also use the STEP Literacy
program to adapt our phonics and literacy
instruction to meet the needs of individual 
ELL students through small group tutoring.
The school employs two ELL instructors who
push into classrooms during small group
sessions to work with ELLs on an individual 
or group basis depending on each student’s
needs In addition, we provide numerous
opportunities for our ELL students to
participate and succeed in special programs
such as chess and fencing. This past year,
25% of the students on our champion chess
team were English Language Learners. Yalow
follows all applicable laws in serving its ELL
students, including student identification,
annual notification to parents,
reclassification to fluent English proficient
status following the annual NYSESLAT to
determine ongoing eligibility, and evaluation
of ELL programs. 

To retain students eligible for special
education services, Yalow employs three
special education teachers who push in to
general education classrooms and provide
small group support. In addition, based on
the recommended program services on the
Individualized Education Plans (IEPs), special
education teachers may also pull students
from non core classes to provide additional
interventions. This highly inclusionary model
is overseen by the Director of Assessment 
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In 2019 20, RYCS will use the same 
strategies to retain Economically
Disadvantaged students as in 2018 19. 

To continue our efforts to retain English
Language Learners, RYCS will continue to
provide all mandated services and
supplemental supports needed to ensure
each student's progress. Therefore, specific
changes will be determined by ongoing
assessment of needs. The school will also 
communicate with families regularly to
ensure that they are fully able to participate
in the school community despite language
barriers. 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	

and Principal who regularly evaluate the
efficacy of the program and engage inStudent 
ongoing communication with families abouts with 
student performance. The Director ofDisabilit 
Assessment is responsible for: developing anies 
effective working relationship with CSE staff
and educating them about our program for
at risk students; maintaining all student
records, including IEPs, in locked filing
cabinets in the administrative office; and 
keeping an access log prior to releasing
them to staff. We have also redoubled efforts 
with the CSE to review student referrals for 
IEPs in the time period required under
federal law. In addition, we provide
numerous opportunities for our students with
disabilities to participate and succeed in
special programs such as chess and fencing. 

We believe that our efforts to retain Students 
with Disabilities are most effective when they
are tied to meeting identified student needs.
Therefore, potential changes to the school's
plans for 2019 20 will be dictated by the
ongoing needs assessed throughout the
year, including internal assessments, teacher
observations, and parent surveys. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/30/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

37.5 10.5 10.5 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

13 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

4 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

3 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

8 45.5 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

4.5 16.5 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 07/30/2019 • Last updated: 07/31/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

15.5 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

30 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

15.5 

9.5 

0 

0 

2 

4 
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2019-2020 Academic Calendar 
Rosalyn Yalow Charter School 

August 2019 

26th First Day of School 

26th – 28th Half Day For Kindergarten  

29th Teacher Professional Development 

September 2019 

2nd Labor Day: No School 

11th Meet the Teacher: 12:40 p.m.  – 2:00 p.m. 

30th Rosh Hashanah: No School 

October 2019 

9th Yom Kippur: No School  

11th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

14th Columbus Day: No School  

November 2019 

5th Election Day: Professional Development – No School 

11th Veterans Day: No School 

13th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:40 p.m. – 5:30 p.m.  

27th Half Day for Students and Staff 

28th – 29th Thanksgiving Recess 



 

  
 

 

 

              

 

  

 

 

  

  

    

  

 

 

December 2019 

20th Teacher Professional Development- No School 

23rd –  31st December Recess  

January 2020 

1st  - 3rd December Recess 

15th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:40 p.m. – 5:30p.m.  

17th Teacher Professional Development- No School 

20th Dr. Martin Luther King Day: No School 

February 2020 

14th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

17th – 21nd Mid-Winter Recess: No School 

March 2020 

20th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

25th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:40p.m. – 5:30 p.m. 

April 2020 

9th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

10th – 17th Spring Recess: No School  

May 2020 

13th Parent Teacher Conference: 12:40 p.m. – 5:30 p.m. 

22th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

25th Memorial Day: No School 



   

    

 

June 2020 

5th Teacher Professional Development – No School 

29th Last Day of School 

• 193 Total School Days 
• 1st Snow Day: February 17th School Will be open 
• 2nd Snow Day: April 13th School will be open 
• Teacher Professional Development Day Hours: 9:00 a.m. – 

3:00 p.m. 




